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' NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 20% Annual General Meeting of Members of Popular
Auto Dealers Private Limited ("Company”) will be held at 03.00 P.M. on Tuesday, 29t
July, 2025, at the Registered Office of the Company at Kuttukaran Centre, Mamangalam,
Ernakulam, Kerala-682025, to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS )
1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company
for the financial year ended 31t March, 2025 together with the Reports of the
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Jyothish Madhavanpillai (08770679), who
retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To appoint and fix remuneration of Statutory Auditors and in this regard to
consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force),
M/s. R.G.N. Price & Co., (FRN 0027855), Chartered Accountants, G-234, Price
Chambers, Panampilly Nagar, Cochin- 682036, be and is hereby appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company, who shall hold office from the conclusion of
this 19" Annual General Meeting for a term of consecutive five years till
conclusion of the 24" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the
financial year 2028-29 ata remuneration to be fixed by the Board of Directors of
the Company, in addition to the re-imbursement of all out-of-pocket expenses
as may beincurred in connection with the audit of the accounts of the Company.”

' | By order of the Board of Directors of
Popular Auto De‘mers Private Limited

A

i

NaveenPhilip
Director \
(DIN: 00018827)

| ipsndid ?\,;/

Place: Kochi
Date: 15.05.2025

T
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1. Amember entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled
to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and the proxy need
not be a member of the Company. The proxies to be effective should be lodged
with the Company at least 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

2. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of the members not exceeding 50 and
holding in aggregate not more than 10 percent of the total share capital of the
company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10 percent of
total share capital of the company carrying voting rights may appoint a single
person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person
or shareholder.

3. Acorporate memberintending to send its authorized representatives to attend
the meeting in terms of section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 is requested to
send to the Company a certified copy of the board resolution authorizing such
representative to attend and vote on its behalf at the meeting.

4, Members/proxies/authorized representatives are requested to submit the
' attendance slips duly filled in for attending the meeting.

5. During the period beginning 6 hours before the time fixed for the
commencement of the meeting and ending with the conclusion of the meeting,
a member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at any time during
the business hours of the Company.

6. All documents referred to in the notice and accompanying explanatory
statement are open for inspection at the registered office of the Company on
all working days, except Saturdays, between 1T1:00 a.m. To 1:00 p.m. up to the
date of the general meeting and at the venue of the meeting for the duration
of the meeting.

7. Members are requested to kindly notify the Company of any changes in their
addresses/e-mail address so as to enable the Company tg . address future
communication to their correct addresses. + E
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8. Pursuant to section 20(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 35 of the
Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014, as amended, Companies are permitted
to send official documents to their shareholders electronically.

9. Copies of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and
other relevant records in respect of the ordinary business are available at the
Registered Office of the Company and electronically for inspection of the
members during business hours between 10 am and 5 pm on all working days,
except Saturdays.
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By order of the Board of Directors of
Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited

] ? Q/’
pde N
—Naveen Philip

Director
(DIN: 00018827)

Place: Kochi
Date: 15.05.2025
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

(Please complete this attendance slip and hand over at the entrance of the Meeting
hall)

[, hereby record my presence at the 20" Annual General Meeting of Popular Auto
Dealers Private Limited held at 03:00 PM, on Tuesday 29% July, 2025, at Kuttukaran
Centre, Mamangalam, Cochin-682025.

PLEASE FILL THE ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE
MEETING VENUE

Name

-| Address &
email ID
Folio no.

Na. of shares
held

| certify that | am the registered shareholder / proxy for the registered shareholder of
the Company.

Signature of member / proxy




Form No. MGT 11
. PROXY FORM )
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, and rule 19(3) of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name, address and email
ID of the shareholder(s)

Folio no.

| / we, being the member(s) OF shares of the above named
Company, hereby appoint: '
name: e _—_ e e

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the

- 20" Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 03.00 P.M. on Tuesday 29t july 2025,
at Registered Office atKuttukaran Centre, Mamangalam, Cochin-682025 or / and at any
adjournment thereof, in respect of such Resolutions as indicated below:

SL . Voted | Voted
no, | Resolutions for | against

To receive, consider and adopt the financial statements of
the Company for the.financial year ended March 31, 2025

Re-appointment of Mr. Jyothish Madhavanpillai (DIN:
2 08770679) as a Director liable to retire by rotation.

To appoint and fix remuneration of Statutory Auditors

3
Signed this =--------—==--- day of —=-mmmm e e 2025
Affix One
Rupee
Revenue
Stamp

Signature of proxy holder(s) Signature of shareholder




Notes: (1) The proxy, to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company not less than FORTY EIGHT HOURS before the commencement of the meeting. (2)
A proxy need not be a member of the Company. (3) In the case of joint holders, the vote of
the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the
exclusion of the vote of the other joint holders. Seniority shall be determined by the order
in which the names stand in the Register of Members. (4) The Form of proxy confers
authority to demand or join in demanding a poll. (5) The submission by a member of this
Form of proxy will not preclude such member from attending in person and voting at the
meeting.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

To,

The Members,
Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited

Your Directors are pleased to present the Company's 20 Annual Report together
with the report of the statutory auditors and the audited financial statements of
the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025,

Global economic overview

In the financial year 2024-25, the global economy witnessed modest growth, with
global light vehicle sales reaching 89 million units, reflecting a 2% year-on-year
increase, However, this growth was uneven across regions, influenced by factors
such as inflationary pressures, geopolitical tensions, and persistent trade
uncertainties. In the United States, the imposition of 25% tariffs on imported
vehicles initially triggered a short-term spike in sales, but demand soon declined.
By June, the annualised sales rate fell to 15 million units, down from April's 17.6
million. The United Kingdom also saw a steep drop in vehicle production, which fell
to its lowest level since 1949, primarily due to reduced exports to the U.S. market.
Amid these challenges, the electric vehicle (EV) segment emerged as a strong
growth driver, with global EV sales rising to 17.1 million units—up 25% over the
previous year. China continued to lead this space, accounting for a significant share
of both production and consumption.

In contrast to the global volatility, the Indian economy remained resilient in FY
2024-25, recording real GDP growth of 6.5%, the highest among major economies.
This strong perfarmance was. driven by a recovery in consumption, improved net
exports, and robust rural and services sector activity, which supported automotive
demand. A favourable monsoon and targeted government support resulted in 4.6%
agricuttural growth, boosting rural incomes and supporting demand for two-
wheelers and small cars. Although industrial growth slowed to 4.3%, the
Production-Linked Incentive (PLI) scheme continued to attract investments in
automotive and EV components. inflation eased to 4.6%, and the Reserve Bank of
India's accommodative stance, including a repo rate cut to 6.0%, helped improve
vehicle affordability. The EV segment gained further traction due to enhanced FAME
[l roltout, state-level subsidies, and improved financing conditions. Despite currency
pressures, auto exports—particularly of two- and three-wheeler EVs—remained
stable, reinforcing India's role as an emerging global EV hub.
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The Indian auto industry récorded healthy performance across segments,
Passenger Vehicle sales reached 43,01,848 units, with Utility Vehicles driving much
of the demand. Total production across all categories stood at 3,10,34,174 units,
underscoring the sector's robust manufacturing base and its growing significance
in the global automotive value chain.

Business Operational Review

Key highlights of financial performance of your Company for the financial year
2024-25 are provided below:

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

Standalone Performance

During the year under review, the revenue from operation were at
Rs. 2718.91 million as against Rs. 28J7.46 million in the previous year,
recording a decrease of 3.83%. The Hrafit Before Tax was recorded at
Rs. 38.33 million in the current year a{ag‘against Rs. 119.99 million in the
previous year, recording a decrease of 66,(5%.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY & HIGHLIGHTS

(In INR millions, except earnings per share data)

. FY 2025 FY 2024

Particulars
Net Revenue from Operations 2718.91 2827.46
Other Income 14.81 35.55
Total Revenue S 2,733,72 2863.01
Employee benefit expenses “141.91 128.98,
Finance costs : 45.09 39.15
Depreciation and amortization 50.91 46.77
expenses
All other expenses 2,457.48 252812

| Total Expenses 2695.39 2743.02
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 38.33 " 119.99
Tax Expense:
Current Tax 1112 1 . 2660 o T
Deferred Tax ' -2.30 2.12 £
Profit / (Loss) after Tax 29.51 9127 £

Y

¢ {
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Earnings per equity share(in Rs)

Basic: : 582.55 1,782.34
Diluted : 582.55 1,782.34

2. DEEMED PUBLIC COMPANY STATUS

As per the Proviso to Section 2 (71) of the Companies Act, 2013 a company which
is a subsidiary of a company, not being a private company, shall be deemed to
be public company for the purposes of the Companies Act, 2013 even where
such subsidiary company continues to be a private company in its articles,

The holding Company Popular Vehicles and Services Limited has converted to a
Public Company on 10% July 2018. Being a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Popular
Vehicles and Services Limited, our Company became a Deemed Public Company
as per the Proviso to Section 2 (71) of the Companies Act, 2013.

However, our Company has continued to be a Private Limited Company as per
the Articles of Association of the Company.

Certain provisions of The Securities and Exchange Board of India (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 becomes applicable to the Company being a subsidiary of
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited which became a listed company from
19th March 2024.

3, TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Board of Directdrs of your company, has decided not to transfer any
amount to the Reserves for the year under review.

4, DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of your company, after considering holistically the relevant
circumstances, has decided that it would be prudent, not to recommend any Dividend
for the year under review. '

5. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company durmg the
year under review. :

t:0484-299 3470 Mob:73569 68880 e : cor.hr@padl.co.in Branches : Kerala & Karnatalka
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6. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFEECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY AFTER THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

There have been no material changes and commitments which affect the
financial position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the
financial year to which the financial statements relate and the date of this
report.

AR S (P A A e (v RS e e e

7. CAPITAL & DEBT STRUCTURE

During the financial year under review, there is no change in the Authorized and
Paid up Share Capital of the Company.

As on 31 March, 2025, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company is
Rs. 65,00,000/- (Sixty five lakh only) comprising of 60,000(sixty thousand)
Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each and 5000 (five thousand) Redeemable
Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each.

As on 31st March, 2025, the paid-up share capital of the Company stands at
Rs. 51,03,400/- (Fifty one lakh three thousand four hundred only) comprising of
51,034 equity shares of Rs. 100/~ each fully paid-up.

8. CREDIT RATING

During the financial year under review, India Ratings and Research Private
Limited has affirmed the rating with IND A-/Stable outlook for Term loan, IND
A-/Stable/IND AT for fund-based limits, IND A1 for Non-fund-based limits as per
the letter dated 05t October 2024.

/

9. UNPAID DIVIDEND & IEPF

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the
IEPF Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“the |EPF
Rules"), all unpaid or unclaimed dividends are required to be transferred by the
Company to the IEPF; established by the Government of India, after completion
of seven years. Further, according to the IEPF Rules, the shares on which
dividend has not been paid or claimed by the shareholders for seven
consecutive years or more shall also be transferred to the demat account of the
IEPF Authority.

However, your Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for a
period of seven years in Unpaid Dividend Account. Therefore, there were no
funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and
Protection fund (IEPF) and no amount is lying in Unpaid Dividend accour}/tzquﬁé{
Company
Corporate Office : Riva Towers, Swamy Padli, Kaloor- Perandoor Road, Elamalkara, Ernakulam P\#gEG’aZOZ[i/ o
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*

10. MATTERS RELATED TO DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

a) Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company as on March 31, 2025 are as follows:

Name of the director Designation DIN
Mr.Naveen Philip Director 00018827
Mr.John K Paul Director 00016513
Mr.Francis K Paul Director 00018825
Mr.Thomas A Karedan | Director 08770690
Mr.Jyothish Director 08770679
Madhavanpillai

None of the dlrectors of the Company are disqualified under the provisions of
the Act.

i) Appointment

There was no appointment of directors during the period under review.

i) Resignation

There was no resignation of directors during the period under review.

iii)  Retirement by rotation

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act,
2013 and in terms of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. Jyothish Madhavanpillai (DIN 08770679) retires by rotation at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment.

b) Key Managerial Personnel

Provisions of section 203(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 does not apply to the
Company.

c) Independentdirectors

As per Rule 4 sub rule 2 of the Companies (Appointment and Ouallﬂcatlons of'v: X
Directors) Rules, 2014, the Company is not required to appoint Indep })dent o
Directors. L
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d) Declaration by Independent Directors

As per Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 the criteria of independence
laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is not applicable to the company.

11. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD & ITS COMMITEES

a) Board meetings

e v T M e <

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 the Board of Directors met7 ;
(Seven) times on 09" April, 2024, 09* May, 2024, 15% May, 2024, 16t July,
2024, 10% August, 2024, 05 November, 2024, and 06t February, 2025.

Requisite quorum was present in all the meetings and the intervening gap
between the meetings is within the period as prescribed under Section 173 (1)
of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Finance and Authorisation Committee

The Company also has a Finance and Authorisation Committee (sub-
committee)  which is  constituted with Mr.Naveen Philip
(Chairman),Mr.Francis K Paul, Mr.Thomas Karedan, and Mr. Jyothish
Madhvan Pillai Directors as members.

During the Financial Year 2024-25 the Company has held 12 (Twelve)
meetings of the Finance and Authorisation Committee on 16" April, 2024,
14" May, 2024, 21=* May, 2025, 19% August, 2025, 30 September, 2024,
25" October, 2024, 02" December, 2024, 30% December, 2024, 14t
January, 2025, 07" February, 2025, 04% March, 2025 and 18th March, 2025.

c) Committees

The Company is not mandatorily required under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder to constitute an
committees under sections 177 and 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. %

12. MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

i
®

There are no directors, key managerial personnel or other employees“\v\\?hb.,j* L

are in receipt of remuneration exceeding the limits prescribed under sectiog ¢

\‘\‘;7:;@;{—“
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197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment
Rules,2016.

13. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of clause(c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 read with sub-section
(5) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors hereby state and
confirm that—

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

b) Such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and
- the Directors made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company as at 31st March, 2025 and of the profit of the company for that
year;

c) Proper and sufficient care was taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records, in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

d) The Annual Accounts of the Company have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

Proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adeguate
and operating effectively.

14. ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS.

The Company's Internal Control Systems are commensurate with the nature
of its business and the size and complexity of its operations. These are
routinely tested and certified by Statutory as well as Internal Auditors.
Significant audit observatlons and follow up actions thereon are reported to:
the Board. ' 2B

15. REPORTING OF FRAUD BY AUDITORS il

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors has not reported\to the;
Board under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 any mstances of
fraud committed against the Company by its Officers or employees '
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16. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/IOINT VENTURES/ASSQCIATE COMPANIES

During the financial year under report the Company has not entered into or
invested in any new Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates. The details of
the Holding and Subsidiary Companies are given below:-

Holding/ .
il' Name of the Company Subsidiary/ Appl_lcable
0. . Section
Associate
1 Popular Vehicles and Services | Holding Company 2 (46)
Limited .

17. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to
time, the Company is not required to maintain Cost Records under said Rules.

18. DEPQSITS

Your Company has not accepted any public depaosits and, as such no amount
on account of principal or interest on public deposits was outstanding as on
the date of the Balance Sheet. Thus no particulars are reported as required
under Rule 8(5)(v) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

19. PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENTS, LOANS, GUARANTEES AND SECURITIES

The details of Investments, Loans, Guarantees and Securities have been
disclosed in the Financial Statements.

20. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED
PARTIES

The transactions with related parties are in compliance with the provisions
contained in Section 188(1) of the Act read with Rule 15 of the Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014. Information on material
transactions with related parties pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read .

Corporate Office : Riva Towers, Swamy Padi, aloor- Perandoor Road, Elamalkkara, Ernakulajn Pn{ 632 02 .
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with rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in Annexure-
A in Form AOC-2 and the same forms part of this report.

21. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As per section 135 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, every Company having net
worth of rupees five hundred crores or more, or turnover of rupees one
thousand crores or more, or net profit of rupees five crores or more during the
immediately preceding financial year shall constitute a Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee and spent at least 2 percentage of the average
net profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding
financial years for CSR activities. .

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 30th August, 2021 has approved
and adopted the CSR Policy.

As part of our unwavering commitment to road safety, and in line with our CSR
Policy, our company has significantly amplified its efforts to positively impact
society through our ongaoing CSR initiative, ‘SurakshitMarg'. The CSR initiative,
‘SurakshitMarg', was launched with an aim to foster culture of responsible road
behavior in school students. 'SurakshitMarg' is an ongoing initiative that will
continue until 2028. The CSR obligation is carried out in collaboration with our
group companies through the implementing agency, the K. P, Paul Foundation.
By conducting a variety of impactful programs in schools, the initiative aims to
influence students, thereby indirectly fostering safer road habits within their
families and the wider community. The CSR initiative, ‘'SurakshitMarg' is covered
under Schedule Vil to the Companies Act, 2013 as notified under General Circular
No. 21/2014. For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025, CSR obtlgatlon of
the Company aggregated to Rs.1.98 millions.

The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020, provides that the Constitution of CSR
Committee is not mandatory if total amount to be spent as per the CSR
obligation of the Company is less than Rs. 50 Lakhs and in such cases the Board
can discharge the functions of CSR Committee.

However, subsequent amendment to the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 pursuant to the MCA notification dated 20th
September, 2022 provides that a company having any amount in its Unspent
Corporate Social Responsibility Account as per sub-section (6) of section 135
shall constitute a CSR Committee and comply with the provisions contained in
sub-sections (2) to () of the said section. As the Company have unspgﬁt CSR_,‘
amount as on the end of reporting period, the Company is requlregftpconstltute?} .
CSR Commiittee. Lo
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The Company has initiated activities in accordance with the said Policy, the
details of which have been mentioned in "ANNEXURE B" which forms part of this
Report.

21. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY/ TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND_FOREIGN
- EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO (As required under section 134(3)(m)of
Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014)

The company uses power saving lighting equipment's for its office and
workshop and saves power wherever there is scope for energy saving.

No technology absorption has taken place during the year under
consideration. : .

There was no foreign exchange inflow or outflow during the year.'

22.RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, access, monitor and
mitigate various risks to key business objectives. Major risks identified by
the business and functions are systematically addressed through
mitigating actions on a continuous basis.

23. VIGIL MECHANISM

During financial under review the Company does not meet the criteria specified
under section 177 (9) of the Companies Act 2013 so there is no requirement to
form a vigil mechanism or whistle blower policy.

24. MATERIAL ORDERS OF JUDICIAL BODIES/REGULATORS

During the financial year under review, there were no material orders
passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern
status and company's operations in future.

25.STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. R. G. N. Price & Co., Chartered Accountants was appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company at the 19th Annual General Meeting of the Company
for a period of 5 years till the conclusion of the 24% Annual General Meegting,

£
e
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26.STATUTORY AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Statutory Auditors’ in their Report for the financial year ending 315 March,
2025 does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remarks.

27. SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has appointed
Mpr, M.C. Sajumon, Practicing Company Secretary, Kochi as Secretarial Auditor to
conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year ending 31
March, 2025. The secretarial auditor's report does not contain any qualifications
reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimer.

28. INTERNAL AUDIT

Company has established a full-fledged internal audit team headed by
Mr. Sojan Chacko, a qualified Chartered Accountant. Audit team conducts
regular reviews of the business process, operations and financial
transactions to ensure adequacy and existence of effective control
systems; investigate probable risks, deviations, fraud or misappropriations.

29.COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECRETARIAL STANDARD 1 AND
SECRETARIAL STANDARD 2

In terms of Section 118(10) of the Act, the Company is complying with the
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
(ICSI) with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors and General Meetings and
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

30. ANNUAL RETURN

The Company does not have a functional website so the requirement of
hosting annual return in the website is not applicable.

31. HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

Human Resource Department plays a pivotal role in achieving
organizational excellence. Your Company constantly strives to develop
quality human resources, to meet the challenges of competitive business
environment and to build critical capabilities in achieving the Company's
objectives and goals. The Company is continuously renewing and updating
the knowledge and skill of its employees at all levels through training and
development.

L}

HO
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As on 3l1st March, 2025, the Company had a total head count of 373
employees, an increase of 23 employees over the previous year. Your
Company takes significant efforts on employee development by imparting
training to employees at various levels.

32.DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has constituted an Internal Committee as required under the
said Act to take necessary preventive actions as may be possible and also
to carry out redressal of complaints, if any, on sexual harassment and for
matters connected therewith or incidental thereto. Summary of sexual
harassment complaints received and disposed of during the financial year
2024-25 are as follows:

No of complaints pending at the beginning of the year: 0
No of complaints received :0

No of complaints disposed off : 0

Number of cases pending at the end of the year:0

The Committee has submitted the Annual Report on POSH to the Company and
the Board of Directors took note of the same at their meeting dated 06t
February, 2025. The report has also been submitted to the District Officer,
pursuant to Section 21 of the POSH Act, 2013.

33._MATERNITY BENEFIT

The Company affirms that it has duly complied with all provisions of the
Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, and has extended all statutory bemefits to
eligible women employees during the year.

34. INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

During the year under review, the company enjoyed cordial relationship
with workers and employees at all levels and the Directors thank all the
employees for their continued support, co-operation and valuable
contributions.
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35.DISCLOSURE ABOUT THE APPLICATION AS MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING IS
PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE (IBC), 2016 DURING
THE YEAR ALONG WITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Not applicable .

36.DISCLOSURE ABOUT THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE AMOUNTS OF THE
VALUATION EXECUTED AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE
VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THERE OF

Not applicable

37. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors wish to express their appreciation to the shareholders and
other stakeholders for their continued faith in the company and also for
their valuable support.

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors of
Popular Auto Dealers private Limited

*47///
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A
Naveen Philip——" John K. Paul
“(Director) \ (Director)
) DIN: 00018827 DIN: 00016513

Place: Kochi-25
Date: 15.05.2025
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FORM NO. AOC -2
ANNEXURE A TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm's length basis -

SL. No. Particulars : Details

Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction
including the value, if any NOT
Justlflca’?lon for entering into such contracts or arrangements or . | APPLICABLE
transactions .

Date (s) of approval by the Board

Amount paid as advances, if any

Date on which the special resolution was passed in General
meeting as required under first proviso to section 188

O (o

Z ialm|l m

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm's length basis.

SL. Particulars Details
No.

A | Name(s) of the related party & nature of relationship

B Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transaction

- ‘ . NOT
C Duration of the contracts /arrangements/ transaction APPLICABLE
D Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction

including the value, if any
E Dates of gpproval by the Board, if any

F Amount paid as advance, if any

»'/:
N
e
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SL. No.

Particulars

Details

Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction

O |n|m|>x

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction
including the valug, if any

Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or
transactions’

Date (s) of approval by the Board

Amount paid as advances, if any

T |©m|] m

Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting

NOT
APPLICABLE

as required under first proviso to section 188

+Refer Note No.36 of the financial statements for details

Place: iochi~25
Date:15.05.2025

Corporate Office

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

Popptar Auto Dealers Private Limited
d i ki
£ 1 '

' John K. Paul
(Director) (Director)
DiN: 00016513 DIN: 0001882
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Annexure B

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
(Pursuant to Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014)

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

CSR policy encompasses the company's philosophy for delmeatmg its responSIbIUty
as a corporate Citizen and lays down the guidelines and mechanism for carrying out
socially useful activities/ projects and programs for welfare and sustainability,
development of community at large. The CSR provisions are applicable to the
Company with effect from the Financial Year 2021-22 and the Company has
undertaken the CSR activities directly and through NGO.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

As per the provisions of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020, a company is not
required to constitute a CSR Committee if its total CSR obligation does not exceed
50 lakh. In such cases, the Board of Directors may directly discharge the
functions of the CSR Committee.

For the financial year 2024-25, the Company's total CSR obligation amounted to
¥1.98 million, out of which 20.18 million was spent during the year. The Board, in
line with the applicable provisions, directly monitored and discharged the C5R
functions during the year. '

However, pursuant to the amendment to the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, notified on 20th September 2022, it is
mandatory for a company having an unspent amount in its Unspent CSR Account
under sub-section (6) of section 135 to constitute a CSR Committee and comply
with the provisions of sub-sections (2) to (6) of section 135.

As the Company had an unspent CSR amount transferred to the Unspent CSR
Account during the year, it will be required to constitute a CSR Committee for the
financial year 2025-26 to comply with the amended regulatory requirement.

3.'Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Pohcy andeSRv

Projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company 0
/

'7 oY
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The Company has approved its CSR policy in the Board Meeting dated 30th August,
2021. The Company does not have Website.

4, Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of
CSR Projects carried  out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable.

5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135.
Rs. 0,88,91,255 /-

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of
'section 135, :

Rs. 19,80,000/-

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the
previous financial years.

Nil

(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any.
‘Rs. Nil .

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)].
Rs.19,80,000/-

6. () Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing
Project).

Rs.1,81,084/- .
(b) Amount spent in Administrative overheads.
Nil
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable.
N/A L 0 : N
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]. /
Rs. 1,81,084/- '

) \\\(0/ \N“ // o
e | " _ | - e Bira 026
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(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total

Financial Years [(iii)-(iv)]

Total Amount transferred Amount transferred to any fund
Amount to Unspent CSR Account specified under Schedule Vll as per
Spentfor | as per sub-section (6) of | second proviso to sub-section (5) of
the section 135. section 135.
Financial
Year. (in
Rs.)
Amount. Date of Name of Amount. Date of
transfer. the Fund transfer.
1,81,084 17,98,916 21/04/2025 | - - -
(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any:
SLNo | Particular Amount (in Rs.)
(i) | Two percent of average net profit of the 19,80,000
company as per sub-section (5) of section 135
(iv) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 1,681,084
(v) | Excess amount spent for the Financial Year - '
[GiD-0] '
(vi) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or -
programmes or activities of the previous.
Financial Years, if any
(vi)) | Amount available for set off in succeeding -

Corporate Office : Riva Towers, Swamy Padi, Kaloor- Perandoor Road, Elamakkara, Ernakutam Pin- 682 026
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7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three
Financial Years:
SL | Preced | Amount | Balance |Amoun | Amount Amount | Defic
No | ing transferr | Amount | tSpent |transferredto |remaini |ie
Financ | ed to in in the a Fund as ng to be | ncy,
ial Unspent | Unspent | Financi | specified spentin | if
Year(s | CSR CSR alYear |under succeedi | any
) Account | Account | (inRs) | ScheduleVlilas | ng
under under per second Financia
sub- sub-secti proviso to lYears
section o (6) of sub-section (inRs)
(6) of section (5) of section ‘
section 135 (in 135, ifany
135 (in Rs.)
Rs.)
Amou | Date
nt(in | of
Rs) Transf
er
1 FY-1 - - - - - - -
2 | FY-2 - ' - - - - - -
3 | FY-3 - - - - - - -

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

No

Corporate Office : Riva Towers, Swarmy Padi, Kaloor- Perandoor Road, Elamakkara, Ernakulam Pin- 682 026
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Q. Specnfy the reason(g), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the
average net profit as per sub-section (5) of section 135.

Nil
For and on Behalf of Board of Directors
Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited

=

V " Jofin K. Paul
(Director)
DIN: 00016513

Place: Kochi-25
Date: 15.05.2025
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1. (a) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for th
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Details of Amount spent/unspent for the Financial Year

Annexure 8.1

e financial year:

o @ B3 W (s) (6) () (8) e (0) (m
5L Name of | Item from Local. Location | Project;  Amount Amount  Amount | Mod| Mode of
N| the |thelistof area ofthe |duratio allocatedfor| spentinthe transferr e of implementati
o.| Project. | activities | (Yes| project. n. ftheproject(iny current edto |implion - Through
in /No). Rs.). financial Year: Unspent j eme [Implementing
Schedule —_—  (inRs.). (SR Intati! Agency
V”;\Ottheg StatDistri ’;CCOU"T on- iName| CSR
ct. e | ct or.the Direc Regist
' . project |t ration
as per (Yes/ numbe
Section | No). r
135(6) (in )
1. {SurakshitiPromoting. Yes | Kerala, |4 vyears|55,0,000 181,084 | Yes [K.P.Pa CSROO
marg  Education “Ernakula . , ut (01523
3 . mand 17.98.916 Found 3
. Thrissur ation
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial

year:Nil

W@ @ [ G | ® I O @

SLjName lltem fromllocall Location of | Amount Mode of Mode of implementation
No, of the ithe list of area the project. §spent forimplementation - Through implementing
¢ Projectactivities :(Yes/; . the - Direct | agency.

! f in No).i. . project (Yes/No). _ ‘
schedute State District; (in Rs.). Name. CSR
VH to the v ‘ registration
Act. number.
[N
Total ;
i = . I - . i

(c) Amourt spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
(d) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil

(e) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (1b+1c+1d): 1,681,084/~
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PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY - . E-mail: cfccochin@gmail.com

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members

Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
40/1506, Kuttukaran Centre, .
Mamangalam, Palarivattom P O
Ernakulam Kerala- 682025.

T have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
(CIN:U50101KL.2005PTC018670) (hereinafter called the Company) having its registered
office at Door No 40/1506, Kuttukaran Centre, Mamangalam, Palarivattom P O, Ernakulam
Kerala- 682025 and incorporated on 28.09.2005. The Company is a deemed public company,
as its ultimate holding company, M/s Popular Vehicles and Services Limited, is a public
Limited Company and a listed entity. It has been informed to me and based on representations
received from the management, that for the purpose of compliance under the Companies Act,
2013 and Rules made thereunder the company is treated as a subsidiary of a public company
and is accordingly complying with the applicable provisions of the Act as such.

The Secretarial Audit of M/s Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited for the firlancial year
ended on 31.03.2025 was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its .
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby
report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial
yearended on 31.03.2025 (penod under report/review), complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
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I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the company for the financis] year ended on 31.03.2025 according to the
provisions of: .

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder:

IL. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under-
Not applicable as the company is an unlisted deemed public company;

III. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; The
Company had dematerialised its share certificates and appointed M/s Integrated Registry
Management. Services Private Limited as the Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) to comply
with the provisions of the Act.

IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings. There was no Foreign Direct Investment in the company and the
company has not made any Overseas Direct Investment and also had not availed External
Commercial Borrowings. '

V. The followipg Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act’):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (LODR) Regulations, 2015~ Not

applicable as the company is an unlisted/deemed public company;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquiéition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011- Not applicable as the company is an unlisted/deemed
public company; ’ .

¢) The Securities .and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992- Not applicable as the company is an unlisted/deemed public
company; :

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirel_nents) Regulations, 2009 - The Company has complied with Regulations of
SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2015 to the extent applicable to it, in connection with the .
Initial Public Offering of the ultimate holding Company M/s Popular Vehicles and
Services Limited;

€) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
- Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999-Not applicable as the company
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is an unlisted/ deemed public company and has not offered any Employee Stock
Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme during the period under review;

f) The Secwities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations,2014-Not applicable as the company is an unlisted/deemed public
company and has not offered any shares or granted any options pursuant to any

" Employee Benefit Scheme during the period'under review; :

g) The Secwities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 - Not applicable as the company is an unlisted/deemed public -
company and has not issued and listed any debt securities during the period under
review;

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Tssue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 - Not applicable as the company is an unlisted/deemed
public company and not registered as Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agent;

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shales) Regulations,
2009 - Not apphcable as the company is an unlisted/deemed public company; and

J) The Secwities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998 - Not applicable as the company is an unlisted/deemed public company and has
not bought back any securities during the period under review.

1 have also examined compliénce with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards -
issued by The Institute of Company Se01 etaries of India and Memorandum of Association of
the company.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the pfovisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc., mentioned above, to the extent applicable to
the company. -

VI The company has identified and informed me that the industry/sector épeciﬁc laws,
applicable to the company under Central and/or State legislations, are:

a) Motor Vehicles Act,1988 and rules made there under;

VIL. The company has also identified and informed me that the following Environmental
Laws, Labour laws and General laws are specifically applicable to the company under Central
and/or State legislations Environmental Laws viz, Environment Protection Act, 1986 and
rules made there under; Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 and rules made
there under; Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 and rules made there under;
Noise Pollution (Regulation and Confrol) Rules,2000,The Hazardous Wastes (Management
Handling and Trans boundary Movement) Rules, 2008 and Labour Laws viz; The
Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1965 and rules made there under, The Contract Labour
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(Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970 and rules made there under, Apprentices Act,1961 and
rules made there under, The Employees® Provident Fund & Misc. Provisions Act, 1952 and
rules made there under; and Kerala Shops and Commercial Establishments Act, 1960 and
other General Laws viz; The Factories Act 1948 and rules made there under; The Industrial:
Disputes Act, 1947 and rules made thereunder; vis-a-vis The Sexual Harassment of Women )
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

For the purpose of examining the adequacy of compliances with industry/sector specific laws
and Environmental laws, reliance has been placed on information/records produced by the
Company during the course of audit and the Management Representation Letter issued by the
Managing Director of the Cormpany and the reporting is limited to that extent and based on
that I am of the opinion that the company has generally complied with the specific laws and
Environmental Iaws.e’rc7

I further report that the compliance by the company of the financial laws like direct and
indirect tax laws and various labour laws and other laws has not been reviewed in this audit,
since they do not come under the scope of this audit. However, based on the information
received and records maintained by the company and on their examination, I report that there
are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with general laws like labour -
laws, Competition law, environmental laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. Since the
Company is a wholly owned subsidiary- of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited, it has
availed the exemption from the requirement to appoint Independent Directors on its Board, as
provided under the notification dated 5th J uly 2017, which amended Rule 4 of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. The said amendment exempts an
unlisted public company that is a wholly owned subsidiary from the requirement to appoint
Independent Directors. M., Francis K. Paul (DIN: 00018825), Director, who retired by
rotation in terms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 was re-appointed as Director of
the Company at the 19" Annual General Meeting held on July 29, 2024 ag recommended by
the Board at their meeting held on May 15, 2024.

The Company is not required to appoint Chief Financial Officer (CFO), as its paid up share .
capital is below the threshold limit of 10 Crores, as prescribed under Section 203(1) of the
Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. .

I further report that the company held seven (7) Board meetings during the period under
review, respectively on 09.04.2024, 09.05.2024, 15.05.2024, 16.07.2024, 10.08.2024,
05.11.2024, and 06.02.2025, and adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the
Board Meetings. The agenda and detailed notes thereon were circulated in advance, in
accordance with the statutory timelines. A proper system exists within the Company to seek
and obtain further information clarification on the agenda items before the meeting and -
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for meaningful participation at the meeting. The ploceedlngs of the above meetings were duly
recorded and signed by the Chairman. - PRIEE -

During the period under report, the Company entered into related party transactions with its
holding Company and other group Companies/Associates, in the nature of purchase and sale
of goods, fixed assets, availing or rendering of services, payment and receipt of Corporate
Guarantee Commission etc. and in respect of which the Company has complied with
provisions of Sections 188 and186 of the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable. Approval for
entering into related party transactions during the financial year 2024-25 .was accorded at the
Board Meetings held on 09.04.2024 and 16.07.2024.

The Board at the meeting held on 09.04.2024 noted the declaration given by the directors
pursuant to Section 164(2) of the Act and ensured that none of the directors are disqualified
under the provisions of Section 164(2) of the Act. The Board also noted the Disclosure of
interest and shareholding of Directors received pursuant to Section 184(1) of thé Act.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the deolsmns
of the Board were unanimous and no d1ssent1n0 views have been recorded.

During the financial year 2024-25, the term of Statutory Auditors of the Company, M/s. A.S.
Narayanamoorthy, Chartered Accountant, Cochin-682036, expired, and M/s R.G.N. Price &
Co. (FRN 0027858S), Chartered Accountants, Cochin- 682036, were appointed as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company, to hold office from the conclusion of the 19" Annual General
Meeting for a term of consecutive five years till conclusion of the 24" Anmual General
Meeting of the Company to be held for the financial year 2028-29, pursuant to proviso to
Section 139(1) of the Act. The above appointment was duly intimated to the Registrar by filing
necessary e-Form.

During the 1eport1ng peuod the Finance & Authorisation Committee met Twelve (12) times
respectively on 16.04.2024, 14.05.2024, 21.05.2024, 19.08.2024, 30.09. 2024, 25.10.2024,
02.12.2024, 30.12.2024, 14.01.2025, 07.02.2025, 04.03. 2025, and 18.03.2025. The
proceedings of the above comumittee meetings were duly recorded and signed by the Chairman
and were also duly considered by the Directors in their respective Board meetings.

The Company was not required to constitute the Audit Committee and the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee under Sections 177 and 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, as itisa
wholly owned subsidiary of a public company and is accordingly exempted from such
requirement in terms of the M1n1sh'y of Corporate Affairs Notification dated 13th July 2017.

During the reporting period, the Company came under the purview of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013, based on the Net profit criteria.. However, in accordance with the
Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020 and Companies (CSR Policy) Amendment Rules, 2022
the constitution of a CSR Committee was not mandatory for the Company as the CSR
obligation was less than Z50 lakh, and there was no unspent CSR amount ﬁom prior years.
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Accordingly, the Board of Directors discharged the functions of the CSR Committee. The
total prescribed CSR amount for the year was 19,80,000, out of which an amount of
35,50,000 was transferred to the K.P. Paul Foundation (CSR Reg. No. CSR000'15233), of
which, ¥1,81,084 was spent on the ongoing CSR project titled ‘Surakshit Marg’. - The
remaining unspent CSR amount of %14,30,000 was transferred by the Company to the Unspent
CSR Account, in compliance with Section 135(6). Additionally, the implementing agency,
K.P. Paul Foundation, transferred 33,68,916.49 to the same Unspent CSR Account.

The 19" Annual General Meeting of the company for the financial year ending 31.03.2024
was held on 29.07.2024 at the Registered Office of the Company. The proceedings of the
above meeting were recorded and signed by the Chairman. '

As per the records of the Company and the explanation received, the Company has constituted
an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) in compliance with the provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013("POSH Akt"). The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 06th February 2025, took
note of the Annual Report submitted by the ICC for the Calendar Year 2024 under the POSH
Act. As confirmed, the Committee has also submitted the Annual Report to the District
Officer, in accordance with Section 21 of the POSH Act, 2013.

The Company has established a vigil mechanism to provide adequate safeguards against
the victimisation of employees and directors who utilize the mechanism, and to effectively
address any genuine concerns raised by them. - :

During the reporting period, the Company declared a dividend of %104 per equity share of
face value %100/~ each at its 19th Annual General Meeting held on 29th July 2024 as
recommended by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 15.05.2024. The dividend
was declared for the financial year ended 31.03.2024 on 51,034 equity shares of 100/- cach
outstanding as on the record date, amounting to Rs. 5.31 million, and was paid within the
prescribed timeline. The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 123 of the
Companies Act, 2013, with respect to the declaration and payment of dividends.

I further report that, based on the information provided and records maintaihed by the
company, there are adequate systems and processes commensurate with the size and

operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, fules,
regulations, and guidelines. .‘

I further report that during the audit period, the Company has undertaken the following
specific events/actions having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the
above-referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc., in addition to creation,
modification, and satisfaction pf charges:
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(1) Inter-corporate loan availed from the holding Company, M/s Popular Vehicles and
Services Limited, under Section 186 of the Companies Act 2013

The Board, at their meeting held on 09t May 2024, accorded approval as per Section 179(3)
of the Companies Act, 2013, to avail intercorporate loan up to an amount of % 6 Crores, in
compliance of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, upon the terms and conditions as
contained in the draft Loan agreement with the holding Company, M/s Popular Vehicles and
Services Limited. '

(2) Altered the Object Clause of the Memorandum of Association of the Company

The members, in the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 29.07.2024, gave their consent
to alter the OBjeot Clause of Memorandum of Association of the Company, subject to the
approval of the Central Government, pursuant to section 13 (1) read with Sub Section (9) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to include the following as clause 3 (b) of the sub clause (41) after
sub clause (40) of clause 3 (a) of the Memorandum of Association of the Company and the
approval of the Central Government was obtained for the alteration:- :

(41) To act as facilitators for the sale or distribution of any Life or General Insurance
products or policies and for the purpose act as agents for commission or remuneration and
engage sub-agents or. employees and do the insurance business as provided under the
'Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority.

This report is to be read with our letter of even date, which is annexed hereto as Annexure A
and forms an integral part of this report,

UDIN: A009868G000328549 - - M.C.SAJUMON .
Place: Kochi-18- . "Practising Company Secretary

Date: 15.05.2025 MN: A9868, C P. No.: 2385
Co - ICSI Unique Code: 11995KE067800
Peer review Cert. No. 6496/2025
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‘Annexure A’ .
ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUBIT REPORT

To

The Members

Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
40/1506, Kuttukaran Centre, -
Mamangalam, Palarivattom P O
Ernakulam, Kerala - 682025.

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial or other statutory records is the responsibility of the
management of the company. My responsibility is to express an opinjon on these
records based on my audit.

2. 1 have followed the audit.practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurances about the correciness of the contents of the Secretarial records.

3. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable
basis for my opinion.

4. Ihave not verified the correctness and applopnateness of financial records and books
of Accounts of the company.

5. Wherever required, I have obtained the management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

6. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. My examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

7. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the company

UDIN: A009868G000328549
Place: Kochi-18

Date: 15.05.2025 ' MN: A9868, CP. No.: 23
ICSI Unique Code: 11995KE067800

Peer review Cert. No. 6496/2025
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R. G. N. PRICE & CO.

{ 2
S CHARTERED ACGOUNTANTS

PHONE : OFFICE : 2316538, 2312960 -234 PRICE CHAME\BERS
E-mail : priceco@rgnprice.com ' PANA?»:%\PILLY NAGAR
website : www.rgnprice.com CCCHIN - 682 038
Offices at :

CHENNAI, MUMBAI, BANGALORE, QUILON, CALICUT

Our Ref : 05/2025 15.05.2025
UDIN: 25023933BMLHSN2918 '

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
POPULAR AUTO DEALERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qpinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of Popular Auto Dealers
Private Limited (“#he Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31% March 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information. '

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepled
in India. of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31% March 2025, and PROFIT, Changes in
Equity and its cash flows for the vear ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
'

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act. 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements undér the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder.
and we have fulfilled our other cthical responsibilities in accordance with these requiréments and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate o
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Information other than the Fingicial Statements and Auditors Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the Information other than the financial
statements and auditors report thereon. The said information comprises the information included in
the Directors Report (Other information), but does not include the financial statements and our audit
report thereon. The Other Information is expected 10 be made available 1o us after the date of this
auditors’ report

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
v 3
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available, and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, otherwise appear 10 be materially misstated

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to comnumicate the matter to those charged with governance

Respousibility of  Management and  Those Charged with  Governance for
the Standalone Financial Statemenis

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act. 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash
{lows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India.
including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
saleguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
cstimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements. management is responsible for assessing the Company”s ability
1o continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.




Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Stafements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due o fraud or ervor, and 1o issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guaraniee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstalements can arise from Ifraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregale, they could reasonably be expected 1o influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion. forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal fmangial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going cancern basis of accounting
and. based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists refated 1o events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
coneern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report 1o the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company 1o cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,




We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act.
2013. we give in the Annexure a statement on the matrers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order. 1o the extent applicable.

(S

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act. we report that: \
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. -In our opinion, proper hooks of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss. Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
]
d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31% March 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer our separate Report in Annexure
Al

No managerial remuneration was paid during the year and hence reporting on compliance with the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act is not applicable.

ug

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and 1o the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:




The company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial
position,
The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foresecable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

(iy The management. as explained in Note No. 37(a) of the financial statements, has
represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the
notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced orloaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company
to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(i1y The management. as explained in Note No. 37(b).of the financial statements, has
represented, that, 1o the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the
notes to the accounts. no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or
entity(ies). including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatwsoever by or on
behall of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behall of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and ’
(iii) Based on such audit procedures, that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
epresentations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

The dividend declared or paid during the year by the company is in compliance
with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting sofiware for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility. and the same operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in such software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the
audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention.

For R.G.N. PRICE & €O,

Chartered Aceountants

B0, VEERAMARNI
Fartner
M. No. 23933, FR. No. 0027855
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT OF.EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF POPULAR AUTO DEALERS PRIVATE LIMITED

1) Fised Assets

(@) (A) The Company has maintained records showing particulars of Property, Plant and Equipmen
including quantitative details and situation. ’

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

tby These Properties. Plant and Equipments have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such physical
verification,

i¢) The Company does not own any immovable properties other than improvements to leaséhold
buildings. "

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipments during the year

{e) As per the information and explanations furnished to us. no proceedings have been initiated or
are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 (43 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

ii} [nventories o

(a) The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year at reasonable
intervals and in owr opinion the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management
is appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of stock were not material
having regard to the size of the operation of the company

(b) The company has been sanctioned /renewed working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees,
in aggregaie, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets during
the year. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations furnished to us, the
quarterty returns or statements [iled by the company with such banks or financial institutions are
in agreement with the books of account of the Company.

i) Investments/Loans/Advances and Guarantees

During the year, the company has not made any investments in or provided any guarantee or seciirity
or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans. secured or-unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties other than those given in the normal course of
business. Accordingly, none of the subclauses under this heading are applicable.

o et e

e et ————————



iv) Compliance with Sec 185 and Sec 186

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company had not
granted any loans 1o parties tp whom provisions of Sec 185 applies and conseguently clauses relating
to terms and conditions of loan, payment of interest and repayment of principal and status of overdue
are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
made any investments, guarantees during the year to which the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of
the Companies Act 2013 applies.

v) Fixed Deposits

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
accepted any deposits or amounts deemed o be deposits to which the provisions of Section 73 10 76
of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under applies.

vi} Cost Records
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Central
Goverhmenl has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the

Companies Act, 2013, for the company.

vil) Statutory Dues

{a} The company was generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues towards Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods &
Service Tax, duty of customs, cess and other statutory dues, wherever applicable. There were no
arrears of undisputed statutory dues as on the last day of the financial year for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According 1o the records of the company. the following disputed statutory dues are outstanding
as on the date of balance sheet.

Name of Nature of Dues Amonunt (Rs, Period to which the amount Forum where the
Statute In million) relades dispute is
' pending
Appcliate
Authority,
Goods and Assistant
; :“tervices Goods an‘d Services 0.68 3019-20, 2020-21 Con.amissioncr,
i Tax Acw Tax Deputy
2017 ' Commissioner
: {Commercial Tax
. Office)
;//



viii} Undisclosed Income

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
transactions which are not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessmens under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

ix) Repavment of Loans

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not defaulted in repayment of interest and principal to any lender.

(b) Based on the information and explanations given to us, the company is not declared wilful
defaulier by any bank or financial institution or any other lender;

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for which
they were obtained. :

(d) According 10 the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that no
funds raised on short-term basis have been used for tong-term purposes by the comparny

{e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the company, we report that the company has not 1aken any funds from
any entily or person on account of or 1o meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or
joint venlures '

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the company has not raised Joans during the year on the pledge of securities held in

its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

1) Application of funds raised throuch public offer

(a) The company has not raised any funds through public offer during the year.

{b) The company has not raised any funds during the year by way of preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible)

xi) Frauds

(a) According to the information and explanations given 10 us, no fraud, on or by the company, has
been noticed or reported during the vear,




(b) Asno fraud, on or by the compan}, has been noticed or reported during the vear, repor ting under
this clause as per section 143(12) is not applicable.

(c) Asrepresented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
company during the year.

xii) Nidhi Company

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not a
nidhi company and hence this clause in not applicable to the company.

1

xiii) Related Party Transactions

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 1o us, all transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 wherever applicable
and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accourtting standards.

Being a whally owned subsidiary, the company is not required to constitute an Audit Committee as
per section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 4(2) of Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 as amended.

xiv) Internal Audit

{a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an mtemai audit system
commensuarate with the size and nature of its business

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the period
under audit,

xv) Non-Cash Transactions

As explained to us, the company has nol entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or
other persons during the year )

xvi) Registration with RBI

- The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934 and hence this clause is not applicable to the Company.

xvii) Cash Losses

The company has not incurred cash losses in the tmanuai year and in the immediately preceding
financial year,




xviii) Resignation of Auditor

‘Fhere has been no resignation of the Statutory auditors during the year and accordingly this clause is
notapplicable. '

xix) Going Concern

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios.
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumplions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as
on'the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one vear from the balance sheet date,
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the faets up 1o the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guaranlee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due,

xx) Corporate Social Responsibility

(1) The company does not have any unspent amount towards CSR on item other than ongoing
project and hence reporting under this clause is not applicable.

(b) In respect of ongoing projects, the company has transferred unspent amount to a special account,
within a period of thirly days from the end of the financial year in compliance with section

135(6) of the said Act.

xxi) Observations by component auditors

The company does not have any. subsidiaries/associatesfjoint ventures and hence reporting under this
clause is not applicable. » : '

For R.G.N. PRICE & co.

Chartered Accountants
PM. VEERAMAN]
Partner

M. Na, 23933, FR. No. 0027855



ANNEXURE @ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF POPULAR AUTO DEALERS PRIVATE
LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over [inancial reporting of” Popular Auto Dealers
Piivate Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal conirol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Firiancial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence o company’s policies. the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act. 2013, '

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audil. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed nnder section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanis of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit (o obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether adequate internal {inancial controls
over financial reporting was established and maimained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects. :

Our audit involves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial -reporting and their operating effectiveness.' Our audit of -
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists. and
testing and evaluating the design and operating etfectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtined is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial conirol over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for exiernal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial conirol over linancial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that

1} pertain W the maintenance of records thal. in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the asscts of the company:

2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 1o permit .preparali(m of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company arc being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and

3} provide reasonable assurance regarding. prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial stalements. :

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherenit limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
1o error or {raud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions.
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deleriorate, '

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial contrals
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on “the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components-of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India™.

For R.G.N. PRICE & COo.

Chartered Accountants
T s

P.M. VEERAM

Partnar A.Nl’d'/

M. Mo. 23933, FR. No. 0027858

/
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ST

ATEMENT OFTOTALINCOME REOR THE ASSESSMENT WEAR 202526
PAN:AADCPGOSYG, DCIIACIT CIR 41y ROCIT

INCOME FROM BUSENESS

Profit before 1ax as pér Statement of Profjt andeLoss 3.83.21,199

Adil: nadmissibles

Deprectation considered separafely (excluding deprecintion on ROU psset) -

Mot 25 . 1,39,59,156

Donation - Note 26 740

Net Allowancees foF expected credit Joss ~ Note 33 64,52,386

CSR Expenditure :~Note 26 19.80,000

Provision for leave encashment - Note 23 4.28,694

Provision for gruuity - Note 23 18.,27,852

Ind AS adjustment charged o Profit & Loss (Refer Note 2 below) 46,07357 .
2.92,62,865
6,75,84,064

Liess: Admissifles

Interest income from banks considered separately - Note 20 11,93,652

Interest vn. IT refund considered seperately Note 21 1,36473

Gain on sale of propeny, plant and equipment {ney) Note 20 9.51,980

Depresiation as per 1T Rules 1.14.93.785

Comrituttion-to LIC gratuity fond ‘ 20.:45,581
1.58,23.472

INCOME FROM OTHER SOURCES

interest from banks ' 11,93,653

Interest on IT Refund 1,36,473

Tax Due @ 32% (Refer Note 3 below}

Income frum Qther Sources

Gross Total Income

Less: Deductions Under Chapter VI-A
80JJAA; Additional Emplovee Cost

(Annexure 1)
Tuxable lncome

10925190

Add: Surcharpe @ 10% 1092419
' T T1,20,17.709

Add; Health and Education Cess @ 4% 4,80,708

Total tax payable 1,24.98417

Less ' TDS 16,46,068

Less: TCS 148,580

1,0703,760

Less: Advance tax paid

14.06.2024 50,800,000

12.09.2024 R 32,60,600

13 122024 30,040,000

14.03.2005 3.00,000 1,15.00,000

{7.96,240}
Refond due 7,96,240
NOTES
} Bank lecount Details

Bank Name. Koink Mahindra Bant

Acgount No. 05922080000052

Account Type Cash credit accoum

MICR 682485002

iFSC CODE KKBKOUG0392

3.17.60,592

13,30.126

53050718

34,30,763

/)
Fot POPULAR AUTO DEALERS (¥) aw
/ /\ v ;-“'7’(-’
u/ . Fa

Director




o

v

Ind AS udjustment churged to Profit & Loss

Ttem
Int AS 109

Depreciation on ROU Asset - Note 25 1543083
Less: Interest Income on rent deposit (included i Interest on rem deposits -

{Grin)/Loss on eecounting of mutual funds at Fair value (inchuded 10 Other
incame - Note no.20)

Lease liability on vacuted premises sritten back

Total

Note ro.20) 14,58,937

Ind AS 116

Interest Bxpenise on fense linbitity - Note 24 1,59,49,274
{Depreciation on ROU Asset= Notz25 3,54,14,931
Less: Accrued rent expense for the year ’ {4,48,57,628)

Amount

4,146

t12,13.069)

{7,70,317)

46,07,337

3 The Company had opted 1o pay tax under [ower mie as pes Section T1SBAA of Income Tax Act 1961 dunng AY

20-21. Accordingly, the rate of tax is taken at 22% plus applicable surcharge and cess
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Annexurel

NetIncrease in Numberof Employees

Total Number of Employees as on 31.03.2024 338

Total Number of Employees as on 31.03.2025 374

Netincreaseinemployaes 38

No. of emplayees eﬁl_igiﬁ,[e for claiming BOJJAA 26

Calculation of eligible deduction u/s BOUAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961
StNo.|EMPCODE EMP NAME i3] Gross-Monthly Pay  {NosofDays |Salary Pald
1 PADLA24T ARHILWINKS 01/04/2024 12,500 364 1.28.921
2|PADLA243 BALUB- 01/04/2024 14,000 364 152,730
3|PADLE244 Francis Thomas Y1/04/2028 20,000 348 .88 673
4)PADLEZ4B GirishV 03/04/2024 17,500 362 151328
S1PADLL250 Mahanteshwar R 05/04/2024 22,060 358 2,38,559
6|PADLE251 Ajo Kjoseph 02/05/2024] 12,560 333 123,682
7iPADLE252 Shintujohny 02/05/2028 12,500 333 1,264,573
8iPADLL254 Ajay K. - 02/05/2024 18,600 333 1,785,085
3|PADLE255 NIUOK: 08/05/2024 14,000 327 126,231
10{PADLAZ57 AkhitM £ 15/05/202% 13,000 320 1.24.212
131 PADLAZE1 Ramesh S Gadagin 02/05/202% 17400 333 173338
12|PADLG 282 SINDHULEKHA R 30/05/2024 15.000 305 1,38,027
13|PADLE2BS Keclya-baby 03/08/2024 14,000 301 126354
14{PADLA2BS Ramvya keishnan B 03/08/202& 15,000 30] 1,35.453
151PADLG267 SREERAI M R 10/06/202L 18,500 256 171,235
16| PADLS268 FARISHM S 12/08/202& 19,000 292 1.63.740
71PADLY2BS Yadhu Krishnon B 14/06/2024 18,600 290 1.56,381
18IPADLG2T2 SURYAPRARASH K 03/08/2024 16,000 30 1.45.682
19|PADLL274 DINESHKR 12/06/2024 19,000 292 167,754
20{PADL4ZIE Akashkrishina 21/06/2024 12,500 283 105958
21|PADLE278 Barstan i 17/06/2024 18445 287 1,60,043
22}PADL%280 Manasa R 14/06/2024 17,500 290 147,621
23|PADLY28R ACHUMONAS 05/07/2024 14,000 268 112,884
241PADLY230 KISHORKUMARR 15/07/2024 20,000 258 149967
251PADLY292 AKHILESHP S 22/07/202& 15,000 252 1,13.458
26iPADL4203 V Hemanth Kumar 08/07/2024 18,000 265 149,380
Total 39,05437
)

‘Eligitite deduction @ 30% in Year| - AY 2025-2§ LiINERE)]
Eligible deduction @ 30% in Year [ - AY 2024-25 12,532,483
Eligible deduction @ 30%in Year il - AY 2023-24 16,05,639

34,30,763
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Popular Aute Dealers Private Limited, Evnakulam
_ Balnnee Sheet
(Alt-amounts in Indian Rupees Million)

. . Asat AS at
Particulars Note 33 March-2025 31-March-2024
Assets
Now-current assets
Prapesty, plant and equipment & 77.71 65.83
Capital Work-in-progress 4 . L
Right-of-Uss Assets 34 154.28 132,18
Intungible Assets 5 2.12 4.64
Financial assets

Investments 6 23.46 18.65
Other finuncial assets: 12 23,74 273G
Deferred-tax assets (net) , 27 7.6% 546
Other non-curent assets . 7 5.27 337
Totul non-current sissets’ 296.27 266,14
Current assets
Inventories 8 384.63 360.61
Financial assets
Trade receivables g 404.65 33734
Cash aind cash equivalents 10 1540 1508
Bank balances other-thein cash and cash, equivalents 11 16.37 14 30
Other financial assets 2 .17 Gls
Incoma tax assets.(net) 27 0.80 150
Other current assets 7 10.93 1323
‘Total current asseis 832,99 742,82
Total assets 1,129.24 1,023.96
Eqnity and linkilities
Equity
Equity shure capitat ) 13 310 S
Other equity 448.30 423 8%
Total Bquity 433.40 428,98
Linbilitics
Non-current liabilities y
Financia) liabilities
Borrowings 14 49 14 $.70
Lease Liability 34 142.06 12477
Provisions 16 . L75 1.53
‘Toial non-current fiabiliies 192,95 135.02
Curent Hiabilities '
Financial labilities
Borrawings 14 255.63 23574
Lease Liability 34 3446 2392
Trade payables 18
- Total outstanding dues of micro. and small enterprises 1.16 SAT
- Total outstanding dugs of creditors other than micro 15988 13293
and small enterprises
Other financinl linbititics 15 7:34 - 58]
Provisions 16 0.59 0.55
Other curreut liabilities 17 . .23.72 - 2220
Total current linbitities 482.91 ' 444.96
Total equity and liabilitics. 1,129.26 1,008.96
Malerial neeounting policies 3
Rotes forming parl of financiyl stalements 4-40
As per report of even date-atnched
For R.G,N. PRICE & €0, ' Jar and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Papular Aute Dealers Private Limited

PR
P.M. VEERAMAN!

CIN; USBI01RL200SPTCO18670 /p
Partner ; /
M. No, 23333, FR. No. 0027858
John K Paul
Direeror i
DIN: 00016513

Place ; Kachi

Date : 4 xT&If%‘ ax"



Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited, Ernnkulam
]
Statement of Profit and Loss -
(Allamounts in Tndian Rupees Million)

As per seport of even date atteched

For RGN, PRICE & CQ,

Chartered Agcountants

PM.VEERAMANI —

Partner
M. No, 23933, FR. No, 0027858

Place : Kochi ,
Dote : g 5’1-3»36 :

. Note . Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31-Barch-2025 ° 31-March-2024
Tncome .

Revenue from operations 19 ~ 271891 , 282746
Other income 20 14.81 35.53
Total income 2,733.72 2,863.01
Expenses
Purchases of Stack in Trade 21 2,391.54 2.514.61
Changes in inventory of stock-in-rade 22 (21.84) {64.04)
Employee benefits expense 23 14191 123898
Finance costs 24 45.09 39.15
epreciation and amortisation expense 23 50.9] 46.77
Impairment losscs on financial and contract assets 33 . 645 -
Other expenses \ 26 $1.33 77.55
Total expenses ' 2,695.39 2,743.02
Profit before exceptional item and tax 38.33 . 119.99
Profit/ (Loss) before tax 3833 119.99
Income fax expense
Current tax 27- 11.12 26.00
Deferred 1ax charge /{benefit) 27 (2.30} ' 212
Profit/ (Loss) for the year aftributable to 29.51 91.27
owners of the Company -
Other comprehensive income
{tems that will not be reelassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of riet defined benefit lability/ (asset).\, net of tax 0.30 (0.42)
Income Tax relating to,ii‘em.that will-not be reclgssiﬁed to profit or loss ©.08) ol
Total comprehensive income / (Loss} for the year atiributable 10 owners of the 29.73 90.9
Company . , & 90.96
Profic per share (Equity share of face value of INR 100 each)
Basic 29 582.55 » . L782.34
Diluted 29 582.53 1,782.34
Material aecounting policies: 3
Notes forming part of financial statenients 4-40

Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
CIN : U30101KL2005PTCO18670

i

N

John K Paul
Direcior

DIN: 00016513
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Popular Auto Deqters Private Limited, Eraakulam

' Cash Flow Statement
(All amounts ja Intian Rupees nillion)
Yeur Ended Year Ended
31 March 2025 31 Muarceh 2024
Cuslt flows from.-eperating activities
Profit before tax and excéptional item 3833 11v .99
Adfustinents: ’
Fingnee costs 43.04 NECNE]
Epreciation and amortisation expense 3091 ' 46.77
‘/li’r)npaimlun Toss on rade receivables - {20.03)
Excess Provisinn sritten Baek 138
Interest income {279 (2 %6
Guin on sale of propesty, plam and equipment (et} (0 93) > 16;
(Gain)loss on derecognition of right-of-use assets {0.77) i0.353
Net (guin)oss on financial assets measured at Fair value through profit ar (121) T (4.42)
Operating cush flow before working capital changes 129.99 178.09
Working capital movements:
(Increase) £ Deprease in Inventories (24.02) (71.02)
(Increase} / Decrease In Trade receivables - (67.33) {30 63)
{Increase) £ Decresse in Ln:’ms and Advances _13) 63D
Increase / (Deerense) in Linbilities & Provisions §.02 RN
Cash generated fvom operations 45.49 66,65
Iucome taxes paid (11.39) {30.92;
Net cash generated from operating netivities (A) 34.10 3573
Cash Hlows from investing activities -
(Acquisition)/sale of ather avestments, net ’ (3.60) (3.10)
Tong term advanes 1.56 {0.89)
Intercst receiied , 2.79 . 286
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment including eapitul advances {16 98) (30 8%
Acquisition of iniangible assets including sntangibles vnder development 0.5} .
Praceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 337 G 14
Neteash used'in investing activities (1) (12.91) (24.88)
Cash flows from foancing activities
Interest paid {45.09) (39.15)
Long-term bartowings (repnid) / availed, net 40.44 (1213
Slort-term bofrowings {repaid) / availed, net 19.89 6193
Dividend Paid. < (531 -
Interest on fease linbilies - 1595 1347
Principal paynient of lease ltabilities -14.88) 42 43)
Net cash generared from financing activities ( C (19.40) {18.315
Net inereaseiu cash and cash equivalents {A+B+CY 219 (7.40)
Cash and cash equivaleits at the beginning of e year 29.58 37.04
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the véar 3177 29.38
* {referionote 10 & 11~ Cash nnd bank balances)
As per report of even date attached : for and on behalf of the Board of Directors o
Popular Auto Dealers Priviite Limited
For R.G.N. PRICE & €O, CIN : USGI0IKL2005PTCOIS670

Chartered Accountants

PMOVEERAMANI "
Pal’{ﬂ&f
M. No. 23933, FR. No. 0027458

/1///

John K Paul
Place : Kochi Director
P : Loy DIN: 00018827 DI 00016513

+
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Popular Aulo Dealers Private Limited, Ernakulam
Cash Flow Statement
(All amounts in INR millions})

Reconcilintion of finuneial Habilities forming part of financing activities in nccordance with Ind AS 7:

-

Particulars S Asat Cash flows Non cash changes Asat
1 April 2024 Faivvalue  Oibers 31 March 2025
changes
Non current borrowings * 20.70 (9.45) - N 11.23
Current. borrowings 223.74 20.64 - - : 244.38
Lease linbilities {refer note 34) 127.18 (44.88) - 94,22 176.32
Particulars As at Cash {Tows Non cash changes As at
1 April 2023 - Fair value  Others 31 March 2024
chinges
Non current borrowings * 3477 (14.07) - - 20.70
Current borrowings 136.03 87.71 - - 223.74
Lease labilities {refer note 34) §3.21 (37.02) - 73.99 127.18

#includes current maturities of long -term borrowings

(Refer to note 10 & 11 - Cash and cash equivalents)

As per report of even date attached

For R.G.N. PRICE & €O,

Chartered Accountants

PM. VEERAMANI
Partner

M. No, 23933, FR. No. 0077855

Place : Kochi

Date : 1(}’(1 '}JL&" !

for and on behalf of the Boaed of Directors off
Popuolar Auto Dealers Private Limited
I : USG101KL2005PTCO18670

John K Paul

Director Director
DIN: 00018827 DIN: 00016513




Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited, Ernakulam
Statement of ehanges in Equity
(All amounts in INR millions)

A. Equily Share capital ' Amount
As at 31 March 2023 ) 5.10
Changes in Equity share capital -
Asat 31 March 2024 5.10
Changes in Equity share capital ' -
As at 31 March 2025 5.10
B. Other equity
Items of other
Reserves and surplus Comprehensive ,
Income Total ather Equity
Particulars Remeasurement of atiributable to Equity
Securities Retained | net defined benefit | holders of the Company
premium earmings liability/ {asset).net
of tax

Balance as at 1 April 2023 3745 -295.67 (0.20) 332.92
Ind As Adjustment on account of lease _ .
Toral comprehensive income for the vear

Profit for the year 91.27 91.27

Other comprehensive income . o (0.3D) (0.31)
Total comprehensive income - 91.27 0.31) ' 90.98
Balance as at 31 March 2024 ' 3745 386.94 (0.51) 423.88
Balance as at 1 Aprii 2024 37.45 386.94 (0.51) 423.88
Ind As Adjustment on account of lease - ' .-
Dividend paid ' (5.31) {330
Total éomprehensive income for the year - -

Profit-for the period 20.51 2930

Other comprehensive income ’ - 0.22 0.22
Total comprehensive income . ~ 24,20 0.22 24,42
Balance as at 31 March 2025 37.45 411.14 (0.29) . 448.30

The description of the nature and purpose af eacl veserve within Equity is as follows:

1 Sccurities Premiuny
Represents premium arising out-of issue of 14,704 Equity shares of Rs.100/- each at a premium of Rs.2,547 per share during
the FY 2018-19.

2 Retained earninos
Represents accumulation of retained earnings of earlier years,

As per report of even date aitached

Jor and on behalt of the Board of Directors of
For R.G.N. PRICE & co.. Populay Auto Dealers Private Limited
Chartered Accountants CIN : US0101KL2005PTCO18670

PM. VEERAMANI—— /
Partnar .
M. No. 23933, F&, No. 0027855 v o, / /

Y W-f?‘?’kfﬁ\/ g

"jl;-}cm‘j) UY John K Paul

kg

Place : Kochi irector ! Director
Date : ¢ ¥’f§f 234" DIN: 00018827 DIN: 00016513
955
/ ﬁﬁ(h‘l \
2\ 682075

Y



Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited .
Notes to the fhitangialstatenients (continued)
{All amounts In INR millions)

1 Company overview
Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited {'the Company') was incorporated in 2005 as a Private
Limited Company. The Company is engaged in the business of sale of automobile spare parts
and accessories; Sale of used cars. The Company is headquartered in Kochi, India and has
operations In Ketala and Karnataka.
2 Basis of preparation
A. Statementofcompliance
The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited whose
financial statements are prepared in sccordance with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standard) Rules 2075 notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (the Act), as
amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. Consequently, these financial statements
are prepared in accordance with Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015
Further, being a subsidiary of a listed public comipany, this Company is also deemed to be a
{isted public company.
Details of Compahy"s accounting policies are included in Note 1.3,
B. Functionaland presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's
functional curréncy. All amounts are presented in Indian Rupees in millions, unless
otherwise stated. ' i
C. Basisofmeasurement
The financial stateéments have been prepared on the histonca[ cost basis except for cases
wherever fair value is applicable.”
D. Useofestimatesand judgements
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptionsthat affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses, Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accountingestimates arerecognized prospectively.
ludgments
Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most
material effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements. Basis of preparation
(continued)
3 Material accounting policies

31, Property, plantand equipment

.
Ie

Recognitionand measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized




3.2

Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in INR millions)

borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accum ulated Impairment lasses, if any

Cost of an item of Pproperty, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including
import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, rroad tax after deducting trade discounts
and rebates,. any directly attr|

its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and remaving the item and restoring the

site on which it is located,

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of
materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to
working condition for its Intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the
item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, piant and equipment have different useful lives,
then they are accounted for as separate items {major components) of property, plant and
equipment,

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit
orloss,

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, outstanding at each balance sheet
date are shown under other non-current assets. The cost of fixed assets not ready for its
intended use at each balance sheet date are disclosed as capital work~in—progre§s.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of thoge
fixed assets that necessarily take a substantial period to get ready for their intended use, are

capitalized, Other borrowing costs are accounted as an expense in the statement of profit
and loss,

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation . ‘
Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their
estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method,
and is generally recognized in the profit or loss. Leasehold improvements are amortized
over the useful lives of assets,

The estimated useful lives of itemns of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Class of Assets Previous Life Revised Life |

Building 60 60

Plant and Machinery 15 15 )

Electrical Eguipments 10 10

Office Equipments 5 5

Computer and Accessories 3 3

Motor Car 8 8

Motor Cycle 10 10

Furniture and Fittings 10 10

Software ' 3 3

Tools & Equipments 5 5 ]
Intangibleassets: ,

Intangibles assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment,
Intangible assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a
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Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
Notes to the financialstatenents (continued)
(All ammounts in INR millions)

straight-line basis, commencing from the date the asset is available to the Company for its
use and is included in amortization in profit or loss: The estimated useful Uves are as
follows:

Class of asseis Years
Software 3
Goodwill 5

Amortization method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each
financial year and adjusted if appropriate.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specificasset to which it relstes. All other expenditure is recognized in profit
orloss as incurred. '

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable whally within twelve months of receiving employee services are
classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages,
borius and ex-gratia. Short-term employee benefit obligations are meaSured on an
undiscounted basis' and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability Is
recognized for the amount expected to be paid e.g. under short-term cash bonus, if the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity
pays fixed Contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions
towards Government administered provident fund scheme, Obligations for contributions to
defined contribution plans are recognized as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in
the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees.

Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in future payment is available. :

The company is covered under the Group Gratuity Scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of
India for future payments of Gratuity as determined on actuarial basis by UC of India. The
contribution is debitad to gratuity payable.

Defined benefit nlans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution
plan. The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior
periods and discounting that amount.




3.4

3.5

3.6

Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
Notes to the financial statenrents (continued)
(Al amounts in [INR millions)

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and
losses are recognized in other comprehensive income (0CI). The Company determines the net
interest expense on the net defined benefit liability far the period by applying the discount
rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to
the then-net defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability during the period as a resutt of contributions and benefit payments. Net
interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit
or loss.

Other long term employee bengfits

The Company's net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-
employment benefits Is the amount of future henefit that employees have earned in return
for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its
present value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The obligation is
measured on the basis of an annual independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit
credit method. Re-measurément gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise.

Provisions (otherthan for employee benefits)

A provision Is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discourit is recognized as finance cost. Expected
future operating losses are not provided 7or.

A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by
the Company from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its
obligations under the contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the
present vatue of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the
expected net cost of continuing with the contract, Before such a provision Is made, the
Company recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.
Revenue v

Revenue on sale of vehicles, spare parts and accessories is recognized when the risk and
rewards are transferred to the customer and is accounted net of GST and trade discounts, if
any.

Commission income is recognized when services are rendered and in accordance with the
commission agreements,

Discounts and incentive income Is recognized when the services are rendered and as per the
relevant scheme/ arrangement with the service receiver. Trade discounts from
principal/manufacturer are also grouped under discounts/incentives. In respect of other
heads of income, the Company follows the practice of recognizing income on an accrual basis.

Inventories
Inventories are valued on the basis of cost or et realizable value, whichever is less.




Papular Auto Dealers Private Limited
Notes to the financiakstatginents (continued)
(All amounts in INR millions)

Cost for this purpose is arrived at as follows:

* Maruti Spares & Accessories and Ashok Leyland Spare parts are valued at Cost on FIFO
basis.

+ TATA Spares, JCB Spares are valued at Weighted Average basis.
« Kartrenz used cars division, valuation is done on specific identification basis.

impairment

i} Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial asseis
measured at amortized cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized
cost are credit impaired. A financial asset Is ‘credit impaired’ when ane or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amaunt equal to lifetime
expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that
resulf from all possible default events overthe expected life of a financialinstrument.

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is
the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.
Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash
flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Company expectsto receive). '
Presentation of utlowance for expected credit losses in the bglance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the
gross.carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross cartying amount of a financial asset Is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the
Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows ta repay the amounts subject to the write off

i} impairment of non- financialassets

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are
reviewed at each reporting'date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.
If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amountis estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped
together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other
assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value jr use and its
fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows,
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impalrment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognized in prior periods, the




Popular Auto Dealers Private Lim ited .
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
{All amounis in INR millions)

Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to
the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, If no impairment loss had
been recognized

3.8 IndAST16-Lleases
ind AS 116 has replaced existing leases standard with effect from 01.04.2018, Ind AS 17 Leases
(ind AS T17) and sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, on-balance sheet
lessee accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes present value of the lease payment
(discounted using incremental borrowing rate) as right-of-use asset representing its right to
use the underlying asset and a lease lishility representing its obligation 10 make lease
payments and lease rent expense will be replaced with the amortization of right-of use-asset
and interest accrued on lease lability. The standard also contains enhanced disclosure
requirements for lessees and will have consequential impact on cash flows categories as well.

The new standard substantially carries Forward the lessor accounting requirements in ind AS
17.

The Company has applied the provisions of this standard only in respect of those lease
agreements other than short term leases. Where the non-cancellable period in the lease
agreements entered into by the Company are for a period of less than one year. such leases fall
within the meaning of short term lease as per the standard and thus qualifies for exemption as
per para 5 to 8 of Ind AS 116, Accordingly, this standard is not applied for short term leases.

3.5 Recognition of interestincome orinterest expense
Interest income other than received from banks is recognized on effective interest rate basis
and Interest Income from banks are based on statement received from barks.
The ‘effective interest rate' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financlal Instrument to the gross
carrylng amount of the financial asset or the amortized cost of the financial Liability.
In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carryingamount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortized cost
of the liability.

3,10 Incometax
Incame tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in pther comprehensive
income.

i Currenttax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss
for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous
years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be
paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is
measured using fax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognized amounts, and it is intended to realize the asset and settle
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Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
Notes to the fitiivialsintéments (continued)
(Al amounts in INR millions)

the liabitity on a net basis or simultangously.

ii, Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of femporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognized in respect of carried
forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future téxable profits
wilt be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is
strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a
history of recent losses, the Company recognizes a deferred tax asset only to the extent
that it has sufficlent taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other
evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax
asset can be realized. Deferred tax assets - unrecognized or recognized, are reviewed at each
reporting date and are recognized/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer
probablerespectively thatthe related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured,at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle the carryingamount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same
‘tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle
current fax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be
realized simultaneoustly.

311 Borrowingcost
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized
as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognived &5 an expense in the
period in which they areincurred.

3.12 Earnings/loss pershare '

The baslic earnings/loss per share is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax
for the year sttributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year. '

The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted
average number of shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued on the conversion
of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares, are deemed
converted-as of the beginning of the period unless issued at a later date. In computing dilutive
earning per share, anly potential equity shares that are dilutive i.e. which reduces earnings
pershare or increases loss per share are included.

3,13 Cash-flowstatement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted
for the effacts of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or




Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continned)
(All amounts in INR millions)

future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing
and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

3.14 Cashand cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits

with an original maturity of three months or less which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes invalue

3.15 Prior Perind ltems
Expenses/income less than Rs. 10,00,000, if any, are not treated as prior period items as they

are not material considering the scale of operations of the company. Further, expense / income
relating to earlier years which crystallised during the year are not treated as prior periad items.




Populny Aute Dealers Private Limited, Ernakulnm
Notes 1o the fuanchal statements (eontinued)

(ALt wmounts in Indian Rupees miliion}

4 Property, plant and equipment and capind work-in-progress

Fumiture ~ Capteal .
B sl S S ol b Tt wicn (10
fixtures quipme quipinent uip v quipme propess (B
Grass earrying value
Balance ot | April 2023 925 5145 [RE) 831 1.55 $#4.98 802 5200 8.14 o514
Additionsiransfirs) j40 306 2.64 248 0.30 kN3 0.0% Qs L7 3089
Disposals / Capiialisation 0,03 1.06 111 214 925
Balance at31 Mareh 2024 17.68 55,51 3.08 10,74 218 17.83 0.1 §12.07 4,71 116.78
Balance gt 1 April 2024 17.63 59.51 1.08 19.79 235 1763 4.1 e $74 11078
Additions/(iransfers} 430 6.39 110 8N 201 ¢ St 0.07 AR E 2169
Dispasals / Capitalisation - 54 £ i) 0 9%
Balanee at31 March 2025 2198 65,90 548 1143 436 15,20 0,18 128.32 - 128.52
Accumulated Deprecintion
Bafunce at t April 2023 031 17.77 0.21 4.95 0.59 5.96 - 32.7% - 3270
Depresinion for the year 0.26 R4 0.17 104 0.33 172 .02 9,72 - 072
Dispasals / Write off’ 0.9 026 037 - 0.27
Bulance at31 Mareh 2024 0.57 2.98 0.38 6,83 0.92 1349 0,02 42,24 - 42,24
1
Balance at | Apnil 2024 057 2298 0.38 688 9.92 16.4% Q.02 4224 - 22
Depresiation for the year 0.36 5.80 0433 2.2 0.78 L9 803 1530 - 130
Disposals / Write off - 2.32 232 - 2.82
Balinee at 31 March 2028 0.93 28.78 0.71 .50 167 9.57 .03 50.81 30.81
Carrying {ae)
At31 Marcl 2025 21.02 3712 477 235 2.69 .63 0,13 7131 - 7.7
At 3) Murch 2023 17.08 36,53 3.70 3.36 343 14 0.0% 49.53 4,71 454




Popular Auto Deafers Private Limited, Bmuakalam

Notes to the B

sl ehat

o f

1)

{All umounts in Indha Roperes million)

” Y90 2 oY % on 1, $eendol L,l“d
et Asat31 Murch 2025 As at 31 March 2024
e Gross block Net block ] Gross block | Net blfock
Leaschold improvements 21.95 2102 17.55 17.08

a) For detils of propetty, plans and squipment pledged, refer note 14,

43

Cepital Work-in-progress

Copital Work in Proceess ;\nf_h_»_Srhedule as ar 31 darch 2028
‘Amount in CWIP for a period of l Total

1ess than Pyear {1-2 Yeur  §2-3 Yeaus More than 3 years
Projectsinp - -
Projects temporarily suspended
‘Total - - - - -
Capitsd Work in ProgresstAgeing Schedule as 0t 31 Mareh 20124
Capital Wark-m-progress Amount in CWIP for a period of I Total
Lessthan 1year 12 Year  §2-3 Yeass Motz than 3 vears
DPrujects in prog 471 471
{Projects remporarly suspended
Total 4,71 - - - 4.71




Pupular Auto Dealers Private Limited, Ernakulam
Notes 1o the financial sutentents {eontinued)
(All amounis in Indias Rupees million)

5 Inlangilile Assets

Particnlars - Goodwill Compuer Taral
v Software

Grass sarcyiop value
Baluncs a2 1 Apal 2023 11.80 0.59 1238
Additions/(transfers) - - -
Disposals / Capitalisstion - - -
Bulance at 31 March 2024 11.80 0,54 $2.39
Balance at 1 Aprit 2024 1150 .59 12.39
Additiansf{zansiersy - 0.05 0.05
Disposals / Capitalisation - - - .
Bolance at 3L March 2025 11.80 .64 12,44
Accumulated Depreciativn
Balanee at 1 Apsl 2023 500 .18 318
Deprecintion for the year 2.37 820 257
Dispusals / Write off - . -
Balanee at 37 March 2024 7.37 .38 775
Batance ot 1 April 2624 737 0.38 7.7%
Depeeciation for the yaar 2.36 021 237
Disposals / Write off’ - - -
Balince at 35 March 2028 9.73 0,59 16.32
Carrying wmonnts (riet)
At31 March 2028 .07 .05 212
A3 31 March 2024 443 0.21 4,64
Nofes:
1} This rep the exeess purch ideration paid during the year for the busiess seqmsition from Prerus Motwrs Private Limited for the wholesale

distribution af spare patts faccessoties of Tata Motors division for the State of Karnanmke bussd on the apreement dated 9 January 2023

A. Consideration trinsferred

Tue following talle sumimurises tho sequisitton date fair value of consid Rerroed:

Pardenlnes Amouni
Total considesation 30.37 .
B, Ientifinkle nssets nequired apd linbilties i

Prrticulnes Aroun)
Propedy, plmt and cquipment 0.42
loventorics {865
Tatnl assets 19.67
Otler lintilities -
Toml inbilities -
Netidentifinhle nssets aenquired 19.07
C. Goodwill

Goodwill arising from sequisidon hos beey deternined as follows:

Parilenlars Awmpunt
Considersii v eyl 47t forahle 3087
Fafr value of et idensifinble assets acquired ! 1907

Goodwill 11.80




Popular Aute Desfers Private Limited, Ernskulum
Notes 1o the Financisl Statenients {continued)

' {All amounts in Judian Rupees million)
Asal Asal
31-March-2023 _ 31-Mareh-2024

6 Investments
Nan-current investments, untuoted
Investment in Companics

S o Driuie] i 150 150
van Autotech Privale Limited
(15,@6’ 0.0001% convertible debentures of Rs. 100
cach) .
[ovestment in Mutual Funds 21.96 17i%
23.46 Y
Note | : Details of Investments in mutual fund units
Pariiculurs As at 31 ¥arch 2025 : As 01 31 March 2024
Units in Unifs in
absolute Nos Amount absohute Nos . Amount
Aditya Birla Sun life Mutual Fund -1 038149498 3,494 2.89 J145 245
Cunara Robeco Mutual Fund-10814884323 14,142 341 12.890 73
DSP Mid Cap (G)-INF740K01128 30,814 SR ixd 22,128 28
[Pru Bluechip Fund (G) (SIP) (INF109K01BLA) 33.358 3.43 308 293
Kotk Smalt Cap - RP (G -INF1 74K 01211 16,423 3.88 11,743 133
Nippon India Small Cap-408207774587 29,561 4.43 27,742 3.92
Tatal investments in'Mutual Fund Units 1.27,794 21.96 1,08.096 17,15
7 Other sissets
Nonpscurrent
Considered good ~ Unsecured
Prepayments 429 288
Balance with Grawity Fund 0.98 . (.49
5.27 3.37
Current -
Considered good - Unsecured
Prepaynients 3.36 %54
Advanee o stefl 021 0.13
Advance for Capital Goods - 1.34
Paymient 1o vendors for-supply of goods and services ’ 730 T
10.93_ )
1620 T
§ Iaventerices T
(Valued at lower of cost-and realisuble value) -
Spares and lubricants ' 32271 296,61
Used Cars 12.31 15.853
Goods in Transit> Spare 51.05 48.88
. 386.07 . . 361.34
1Less: Provision for obsalele inventory 1.44 0,73
. 381,63 360,61




' Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited, Eroakulam
Notes Lo the Financinl Statements (continned)
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million)

As it : AS it
3i-Mareh-2023 ' 31-Murch-2024
Y Trade receivables
Current
Considered good - Unsecured
(g) Which have significant increase in Credit Risk 12292 109,56
(b} Credit impaired 7.25 a 80
Less:Allowance for expected credit loss (7.2% . .80
() Others ' 281.77 227.38
Net trade receivables 404.6% : 337.34
Trade receivables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2025 ] )
Parti ) Less than More than |
Particulnrs montlis 6 months - 1 year G:Zu:: Toa!
281.77

)Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 28177

ijUndisputed Trade Receivables — which hsve 91.30 29.74 188 122.92
significunt increase in credit risk
049 4.68 2.08 2.25
iif)Undisputed Trade Reseivables - eredit impaired
373.56 34,42 396 411,94

As at 31 dburch 2024

Particulars i e
Lessthan & g monis- L year MO thon |
months yeurs Total

i)lndisputed Trade receivables ~ considered good
iUndisputed Trade Receivables ~ which have 107.78 0.95 0.83 109.50
significant increase in oreditrisk

0.42 0.14 024 0.80
ifi)Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

335.98 1.09 1.07 338.14
For details of trade receivables from relrted perties, refer note 36,
The Compuny’s expusure to credit and currency risks and loss allowanices related to trade reccivables are disclosed m note 33,

10 Cash and cash eguivalents

Balance with banks
~ incurrent gecounts 13.87 ' 13.31
- int deposit nccounts 0.10 i 810
Cash on hand . 143 1,67
Cash and eqsh equivalentsin balance sheat 1540 15.08

11 Bunk balances other than:cash and cash equivalents
" Balance in banks @ mergin mongy with maturity more than 3 months 16.37 1439
16.37 1450

{2 Other financial assets:

Non Current

Considered good - Unsevured .

Rent and ather deposits 25.74 27.30
' 25.74 3730

Current

Considered gond - Unseetred

Iuterest Ruceivable . 047 - 16

.17 0.16
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Popular Suto Deslers Private Limited, Ernakulim -
Notes-to the Financial Strtements {eontinued)
{All amounts in Indiny Rupees willion)

Asat 31- Asat
Mpreh-2025 31 March 2024
Share capitl Number of Amount Number of Amount
shures shares

Authorised
Equity shares 60,000 630 60,000 6.00
Redeemnble Preference Shares of Rs 100 each 5800 6.50 5,000 0.50

[ 65,000 6.5 65,000 6.30
Issued, subscribed and paid-ugp
Equity shares 51.034 510 51,034 S0
Add: issued during the year - - . -

51,034 5.10 51,034 3.0 =

Terms and riphts stiackied to equity shistres

The Company has o single-tlags of cquity shares. All the equity shares sonk cquully with negard to dividends and share

in the Company’s residual-assets, The equity shares are entitled 10 receive dividend as declared ftom time o time The

vating rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands} are in proportion to share of paid-up equity .
capital of the Compuny, Voting rights cannat b exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently
payable have not been paid. Failure 1o pay any amount called up on the shares may lead 1o the forferture of shares On
winding up of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will bz enutled 10 receive the residual assets of the
Campany, remiining afierthe distribuion of all preferential amounts in proportion 10 the number of equity shares held

Recuneilation of shures outstanding at the beginning nnd a1 the end of the reporting period
Equity shares of INR. 100 eoch filly paid-up

At the beginning of the year 51,034 510 51,034 5.10

Add; issued during the year ) C- - - -

Attfie end of the year 51,034 5.10 51,034 510

Details of shareliolders holding more than 5% shares of the Company 3
As it 31- Asnt ;

March-2023 31 March 2024

Eyuity shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid up Number % holding in the Number % holding in

held by of shares cluss uf shares the class

) Popular Vehicles and Services Lid 51,033 99.99% 51,033 55.59%

b) Maveen Philip: (Nominge of Popular

Vehicles & Services Lid) } 0012 i 0.01% b

Shares held by promotess atthe end of the year

{ Change in Promoters holding during the year () NIL

2. Details of Promoters sharcholding .

As at 31- Asul
March-2025 31 March 2024

¥ , oy
No,ofShares % of Toml Shares  No.of Shares % of Folal

Shares
a) Popular Vehicles and Services Ltd 51033 QW 51,033 90 Yy
b} Maveen Philip (Nomince of Popular
Vehicles & Services Lid) 1 0.01% i 001%
L}
Total 51,034 100 60% 51,034 100.00%

Final Dividend

The Board of Directore of the Company at its meeting held on 15 May 2024 hed recommended paynient of final
dividend of Rs. 104 per Equity Shave of fnce vitlue of Rs. 10 vach for the financial year ended 31 March 2024 amounting
to Rs, 5.31 million which was approved at the Annua} General Meeting of the Company field on 29th July 2024, The
sume was paid during the year and is dubited to Retamed Eamings.




: Rupalar Adrs Beaters Rrisate Lotlads Epaolazs
Notes to tha Tluancial Hteaints {coutinnedy
{All amsunts in Indisn Rugeer miltion)

Axad Asat
J1-Maren-2025 Jr-March-202
13 Uorrowings :
Noa-current
Secured foans
Terzroars from barks - A
- . %)
Now-curvent
Unsecured faane
faer Cesporate Laan A 14 . -
KUaE] -
39,13 SR .t )
Guerent '
Secured louns
Cash-credit and aeerdeafl Fzilitios from hynks 23438 2478
Curreat mataritivs of long-torm borrowings. . 1128 12
Uinsecured Laanz
Lenn fran Briscetars . 1B
28863 2381
MLTT pAEXL]
A S of detalle vf d ponditions nf anid -5
. " Asut Asut
Lendess srame Security terms Nature of harmwing Terure 31 Mrch 202 | 31 March 2024
{Sﬁnumnn seeured INua-current, setured
 Term Loan and Cash Credit from Rotak Mahindr Hank 13335 saoueed by firs charge caall]
Cusredt s pasipassu wiily Sauhs ndisn Bank excluding spaces stock, fusdad by Standud !
Chanered Bank & Axis Bark Yimited and feripatsu charge on movable assits of the i
coanxuty with Sealh Todian Bank, Eqesitab aze of Ihs ep of this, P
ok Al iz i which peametess are foieressd held 5s covmuros oollaren: for tho group ondflungtenn lown o | 5
Kotak Mabindz 82 % 0 ' - ) il . i N
Rotak Maliuid Bank Lt persona) rantess of the prommotes dircclors and their spouses , sospotals of 1} - Secund ) g *
finus i which prowolens ane interestod. Term $0an is to de wopaid In 60 sopathly
nstalleacots
Teym Lean from South Iridian Bank is secared by nesesis of the company, manigigs aver
: . imitovable pregenty of the Holding contgany | Corpormie guarantee of Holdiig ConpanyfL.ong term loas trom
Soeal iz B 1ad e pesganal guarintest et he growotce lfectors eiibe carepany ks « Sovmed 60 manthe - 608
Werking Capitaf Tenm Lean undey ECLG scheme from Axis Bank L1d iy seowred by an
fextension 6F charge ¢4 prituary seauritics availalie for existing Siililics vn 3 second rauk A 0
basis The prinsipal-nmount is 1o ba repald i 36 monthly § of Rs 0.0% ang Tezm Joans from 38 nusaths N PYS)
Axls Barkc12d post moratorium period of 1 yexr froms ihe duto of finst disbussomsent. tanks - ECLGS R ¢

Werking Capial Tens Loos nader ECLG scheme from Kook Mahindm Bank Ltd i3]
. sccuted by dn exiznswn of charge v primauy secuntics anailobie for exiging fxilities cn 4
. . sczond rank busis.The principed mount is 10 be repaid in 36 momidy Installments Rs 6.77|Leng Term Joazs fram

¥, 43 1
Kok Maldaden Basd Lad | o post moestoiinm poriod of 1 year frem the due of fiest diskureement hanke - ECLGS S waiks

Vehizle laans aurs seeured by hypothacation of tha veblels finanded and perssal guirantee Vehicla foans From

 Saodaram Financs Limited Jot Directer: Repayable ba tnstaliment Jo 36 1248 moaths Snsncial neputens |38 RAIDS - 033,
Current, Securcd :
Cash Credit from Koesk Maldiden Bawe L js seured by fess <harge o o coreny assens]
paripasse with Soath Tndian Bink a\dndwg HMres dock fundad By Stindand Chartered
Bank & Avis Dk Lindied and paripassu chargs ot movable assers'of the sompiany with
Stusth Inudinn Bunk, Enuilable orizage af the progesties of e frms fn which Shaienms 1020 frem
etk Mabindra Sank £1d [promoteriate (iétesiod beld as common coltaterat for the growp and comporats guamnizeoff % S 1; " LE 1083 n38
. o Antis in which promoters he inferesied. anks - Secus
t
Cosls Credit 2emaunt from Seath Indifn Bank s sevnred by pariposes ehinrze over stock,|
book dshts and 3l ather available currest assests of the company, BRAZIGS over innoavable
South Indian Band: 143 preyety. em,,am« s Contipay Cory of Holtting Cempany i::glf';ﬂ from 12 menths 127 A 07 3t
Tnveniury Funding from Asls Eank is secured by Hypathesation of cotrent msets Sundod by
axis Bink Lid Al Hankboth piesent and fimies shad peesoinal prarantoss by all priotss Disictos, S;‘:;“‘S:‘ ’:"‘" from 4 - 50 dins. 85,07 1240
Chant Finante from Slandard chantcred Bank ts weursd on all eviming book donts,
’ o flentenyy lea\: smarantes of Holding Company amd persossd guzzgouss of all thel Supze 1am ¥nan from
Standard Clanered B2k o romter dlretotsofabe company. A credi perkod of 59 days providnd 1o repuprert, vanks - Secured 0 days : 1823
Clish Credit (c-DES) froin State’ Bank of India s sesured by exclusive Yypadt=cation, Gest N
charge 6. Stosky & Roacinbles creaied. st of thee Tunds Bquivhle Meugapz cof] . .
) tmmovable Proportics of the fimx in which promorers ase wtcresisd and Fersomall. Share toma ban from
St Bask o0 Inctix Givpuntee by Brumoter, Mavien Flilip and collueral seuriy of Ruiibaran Troding il ;mﬁmﬁm 15 ti5s Ve 1.2¢
Vanitrer, Capovite Gh:nmmc by Ruttisaran Teiding Vemurss & Pomlar Vehleles and| .
Servives Lid
Curyent, Unsecured
My, Naveen PUiip  Mr. JLoan from direclods are Inferest fr
z&mﬁ’mm .. - " e Loas from &ireciars . 18
foms Interest Due but ol pafd on Inteecorporgte L fntee CerportfsLoan |45 Months o1
Non Current, Unsecured
Unseayrd Lonn fiom Holding Compuny Popular Vehicles ond Sarviess 143 was mactionsd|ttes Corporms Loan |98 Rianthe
§ <
Intsouspie loans ;:oanx‘xmmmx rate of BE0%. Laan is (o be renaid in 38 gonthly insalimants tatting] e
Tolal 377 UL
Hogey
Thebalance mm terent itles of Jong stetm bacrowds

The barrasistgy from Basks / fifaniaf Instittiong mrrvimuw Tates fiom 7.5 10 12% per anmm
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Papular Auto Dealers Private Limited, Ernakulam
{Notes to the Fi fal Stu {continued)
{All amounts in Indizn Rupees million)

Asut Asat
31-Murch-223 31-March-2024
15 Other finaucial linbilties
Current
Acerued salaries and benefits M ] 557
Daes o Bunks - Corporate Credit Card 043 [
.34 581 .
I6 Provisions
Non-carrent
" Compensited absence .78 153
175 1.85
Cusrent
Compeusated absence N~ 069 0.59
05 050
244 Z__]_-(_“
17 Other fiabilities
Current
Contruet Jiahilitics .aBY Au7
Stamtory dues payable 1T [ZRR
Corporate Socis]l Resposidility BREE
2372 2330

L] .
The contract abilities prisnarily selate 10 the advance seeeived from the custamers for the sale of sprreparts. This will e
recognised as revenua as and when Use company meet the performance abligation by deliverng the sparepans.

18 Trade payables

Duzs 1o micro and smadl enterprises 119 37
Total ogtsmndiug dues of cn:.z_iiwm other . 159.8% 152.02
than micro and small enterprises
161.07 o 150,70
Trade payable ageing schedule
As 631 March 2025 .
Poniculars Cuustunding for folfowing periods from due date of payment
Less than . 2-3 Tota
1 year i3 years years  Mote than 3 years
DMSME Lig - . - 119
11)0thers 159,22 456 . . 159.88
it))Disputed Dues-MSME - - - -
iv)Disputed Dues-Others B . . . .
¥)Unbilled ducs - N . . A
~ 160.41 D.66 - . 161.07
As at 31st Morch 2624
Particulars Qutstanding for following periots from due date of payment
Less than 2-3 Tow!
1 year 1.2 yoars vers  Maore thin 3 vesrs
OMSME 3.7 . B . 337
ii)Others : ! 15111 182 - . 152.93
iii)Disputed Dues-MSME - - . .
iv)Disputed Dues-Others - - - - -
viUnbilled dugs - . . .
- 154.88 1,82 - - 156.70
Disclosures as required under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Dovelopment Act, 2006 ("the Act”) based on the
infi i toble with the Company are given below:
The principal amount remaining unpaid 10 any supplier as 2t (R34 377
the end of the year '
The interest due on the principal remaining outstanding es ar - .
the end of the year
Tt amomnt of mterest paid undec the Act, atong with the - -
amounts of the poyment made beyond the appainted day
during the year
‘Fhe amount of inferest due and payuble for the period of - B
defay in msking payment (which have been paid but beyond
the appointed dny during: tha yenr) but without adding the
interesz specified under the Act
The amount of interest meoruéd und rauaining unpaid af the - -
end of the year
The emeount of further interest ining dus and payabl . -

even in the suceeding years, unitil such dnte when the fnterest
dues as above are aetally paid @ the small enterprise, for iine
purpos? of dizsllowanze ss & deductble expenditure wder the
Act




Popular Anto Dealers Private Litited, Ernaknlam
Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)
{All amountts in Indizn Rupees Million)

Year Ended
31-March-2023

19 Revenue from onerations :
Sales spares and nceessories ) . 246990

Fenr Ended
31-Mureh-2024

< 257173
Income from schemes and incentives 17079 17027
Sales of Used Cars 76.03 8410
Labour Incomz 2.19 1.36
2,718.9 2,827.46

Reconcilintion of revenue from sale of products and services
Gross revenue 3,728.33 2,831 58
Less: Discount allowed 9.42 412
2,718.91 2,827.46

(A) Disagpregate of revenue iformation

The table below presents disaggrepated revenues from contrasts with eustomers for the below years ended'by offerings and
contract type. The Compony believe that this disuggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and unceriaininy of
our revenues and cashfiowssare effected by industry, market and other economic factors

Tarticulnrs Year Ended Year Ended
31-March-2023 It=March-2024

Revenue by nature

Used Passeager cars & Labour Income 78.22 85.46

Others 2,640.69 2.742.00
2,718.91 282746

Revenue by confract type

Fixed price 2,718.91 2,827.406
2,718.91 2,827.46

{B) Contract balances

The following table provides information about trade receivables and coutract liabilities from contract’ with

custoniers.

Year Ended
31-March-2025

Year Ended
J1-March-2024

Trade reccivables
Contract liabilities

404.69
4.84

33734
07

{C) Tramsaction price allooaied o remaining perfornznce obligntions

The {ollowing table includes revenue-expecied to be recognised in the future related 1o performance obligations that are

unsatisfied {or purtially satisfied) at the reporting date.

Year Ended Year Ended
' 31-March-2023 31-March-2024

Within 1 year 4.84 K07

1-3 years - -

More than 3 years - -
Clusing bulunce 4.84 5.07

20 Other income

Interest on Fixed deposits with banks A2 «1.03
Interest on Income Tax .14 JU:3U
Interest on Rent deposits Adb —1.33
Provision for doubtful debts written back ~ - o 2003
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) - .95 o« Ulb
Lease Liability Written Back 077 o 033
Net gain on financial nsscts measured at fair value through profit v71.21 ~ 442
Other Non Operating Income ~ 9.09 v 773
© 14.81 35.55




Papular Auto Dealers Private Limited, Ernakulam
Notes to the Finnucial Statements (continued)
{All amounts in Indian Rupees Million)

21 Purchases of stock-in-trade
Spares and aceessories 2.324.49 2429 11
Used Cars 67.05 R5.50
2,391.54 2,514.61
22 Change in inventories of stock-in-trade
Cpeiing stock 31174 S 24770 -
Closing stock 333.58 31174
(21.84) (0:4.04)
23 Employee benefits expense !
Salaries and alowances 126.24 112.22
Comribution to provident and other funds 8 7 7
Provision for Gratuity 1.83 ~ 350
Provision for leave encashment 6,43 il
Staff welfare expense 4.97 ©5.38
141.91 1238.98
24 Finance cost
Interest on bank borrowings 2151 22.63
Corporate Gurantce Commission 1.58 1.67
Interest Expense on Lense Liability 1595 L1347
Iuterest on inter corporate loan , 4.02 -
Other borrowing costs 143 1.36
45.09 39.15
25 Depreciation sud amortisation expense
Depreciation on prapeérty, plant an 1 equipment - 1139 « 973
Depreciation on Intangible Assets 2.56 ©2355
Depreciation on Right-of-use Asget S 30.96 34.48
50.91 46.77
26 Other expenses '
Rem 915 "6.58
Advertising and sales prom?2ran 243 379
Repairs and maintenance
Building 1.53 1.80
Computer 2.06 232
Vehicle 321 3.09
Qthers 2y 437
Power, water and fuel 268 245
Travelling and conve) znce 743 L7351
Housekeeping aud seu ity ' 322 314
Office expenses {51 1.18
Communication ‘ R 212 189
Rates and 1axes ‘ 0.74 061
Trunsportation charges 3094 - 28.5¢
Bank ¢harges 3.530 253
Insurance LA .80
egal and professional ] _ 088
onation and charity 001 001
/" Carporate social responsibility 1.98 1.63
Miscellaneous expenses ~ Gl 0.06
~ 8133 . ¥71.55

Year Ended
31-Murch-2023

Year Knded
31-March-2024
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Popular Auto Dealers Privite Limited, Ernakulim
Notes to the Financial Stafements {continued)
- (Al amountsin Indisa Rupees Million)

Detuils of Corporate soeial responsibility expenditure

Pursuant to MCA Motification dated 22.01.2024, the details of unspent Hability towards CSR obligations are as beluw:

Year Ended Year Ended
31-Mareh-2025 31-Murch-2024
i} Gross aniount required to b spent during the year 1.98 1.65
(1)  Amount approved by the Board fo be spent during the periodfyear 1.98 1.65
(ii)  Amount spent during the year on | .

Construction/ acquisition of assct - -

Qua purposes other than above 018 . i 65
(iv} (Shortfall}/ Excess et the end of the period/year ' 1.80 -

Corporate Sacial Responsibility -
(v)  Total of previous years shortfall - -
(vi)  Details of relnted party transnctions NA NA
(vif) Where a provigion is made with respect w a liability incurred by
entering into a contractual obligrtion, the movements in the
provision during the pericd/year should be shosen separately NA NA

The amount will be

spend in the
(viii) Reason for shortfal: . NA
subsequent year as it

is an ongoing project.
(ix) Natore of CSR activities:

1) Payment to Prithe minister national relief fund - .
b) Skill development - .
) Education . 0.18 1.65
d) Rural development ) - -
¢} Paymant o trust - .

Out of the amount dishursed tawards CSR purpose during the year 1o a charitable trust, which is the implementing ugency,
“an amount of Rs, 0.37 miltion was retumed to the Company during April 2025, Accordingly, this is excluded from the
amannt-spent during the year in the above table and included under the Unspent smount for the year.

o e \v'-.g g /




Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited, Ernakulam
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees million)

\

Asat Asat
. 31-Mareh-2025 31-March-2024
27 Income taxes

Income tax assets/(liability)

Income tax assets (less provisions) 0.80 . 190

Net income tax assets/(liability) at the end 0.30 1.90

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

Deferred income tax assets .
Trade receivables 1.82 0.20
Property, plant and equipment and computer software 0.16 1.09
Ind AS 116 adjustment , 5.60 4.13
Provision for leave cncashment . 0.1t : 0.02

Total deferred inconie tax assets 7.69 5.46

Deferred income tax assets after set off (Refer Note below 7.69 5.46

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset wherever the managément hos a legally enforeeable right
to set off current tax assels against current tax liabilities and where the deferred tax asseta and deferred tax liabilitics
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, the management considers the extent to which, it is probable that the
deferred tax asset will be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of
future taxable profits during the periods in which those wemporary differences and tax loss carry-forwards become
deductible.

Deferred tax asset in respect of unused tax have not been recognized on account of historical losses und unfavourable
cashilow for a prolonged peripd by the Company,

Asat Asal
31-March-2025 31-March-2024
Income Tax expense recognised in Profit and Loss \
Current tax ' a2 26.60
Deferred tax (2.30) 2.12
8.82 28.72
Income tax expense for the:year reconciled to the nccounting profit:
Profif before tax 38.33 119,99
Inconie tax expense
Current fax 1112 26.60
Deferred tax (2.30) 2.12
Profit:after tax 29.51 91.27
[ncame tax rates 25.163% 25.168%
Income Tax expense 9.65 30.00
Adiissible Expenses (£.535) (7.68)
Inadmissible Expenses 6.21 4.42
Ind AS Adjustmients 1.16 (0.14)
Excess Provision written back (1.38)
Interest on 1T Refupd | .03
Tneome tax expense recigrised in profit or loss L 1112 26.60
ey T N
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Taxes {continued)
Deferred iax asset/
Recognived deferr

(i)  Movement  in
differences

femporary

Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited, Ernakulum:

fabifities) (continued)
Hax assels and {Hablltics)

Notes to the financial statements {continued)

(Al amaunts in Indian Rapees million)

Movenent doring the period: ended
31 March 2023 '

Aswt
1 Aprid 2024

Recogonised

Churpef (credit) in the

through retained  statcment of profit and

Charge/ (credit) in
otlier comprehensive

As ut
31 March 2025

Mareh 2024

1 April 2023

through retined  statement of profit amd

other comprehensive

arning loss income
Allowance for expected credit loss 0.20 - (162) . 1.82
Provision for cmployee benefits 0.02 - Q17) {0.08) ot
Lease Habilities,impact on account -of 4.15 - (1.45) - 5.00
Ind AS 116
Txcess of depreoiation on property, 1.09 - 0.93 [IRTA
plant and equipment under Income Tix
Act, 196] over depreciation under
Companies Act, 2013
Net deferred tax asset/ (liability) at 5.46 - (2.31) {0.08) .69
Movement during the year ended 31 Asar  Recogonised Chargef (eredit) in the Churge/ (credit) in Asal

31 March 2024

Brought forward losses - allowed to
carry forward for specific period
Brought forward losses - allowed fo
carry forward for spedific puriosd
Brought forward losses - allowed to
carry forward for specific period
Long tenn capital loss - allowed to
carry forwand for specific period
Long term capital loss - allowed to
catry forwvard for specific period
Long torm capital loss - allowed (o
curry forwand for speciiic period
Unabsorbed depreciation- allowed to

carry forward for infinite period

enrming loss fneome
pd
Allowanee for expaeted credie loss 524 - 5.04 - 92230
Provision for employes benafils 033 - (0.24) Gl 202
Lease liabilities,impact on account of 319 - (0,96} 413
Tnd AS {16
Ixcess of dspreciation on properiy, {064) - (1713 1R
plangand equipment under Income Tax
Act, 1961 over deprecintion under
Companies Act, 2013 R
Net deforred 1ax asset/ (ability) at A6 - 2.11 .11 346
(iv) Tax losses carried forward
Particulars Asat  Expiry date Asat Explry daie
31 Maceh 31 March 2024
2025




Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited, Ernakulam
Notes to the financial statements {continued)
(Al amounis in Indian Rupees million)

Contingent liabilities and commitments

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Contingent labilities

Bank Guarantees

162.00

GST

9.68

Tatal

171.68

Corporale guaraniees

Commitments

Estimated amoun! of contracts remaining te be exceuted on capital
aceount (net of advances) and not provided for
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Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited, Ernakulam

Notes to the finaneinl statements (continued)
{All amounts in Indian Rupess million)

Earnings/(loss) per share {Amount in INR)

A. Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The caloulation of profitloss atwributable (o equity share holders and weighted average number of equity shares outsianding for

the purpose of basic eamings per share calculations are as follows:
1) Net profit attributable to equity share holders (basic)

/
Particulars . Yeur Ended Yenr Ended
Ji-Mareh-2025 31-March-2024

Profit for the year, attributable to the equity $hare holders 29.73 90.96
i) Weighfed average number of equity shaves (basic)

Opening balance ' 51,034 51034
Effect of frash issue of sharés for consideration other than cash

Weighted average number of'equity shares of INR 100 each for the year 51.034 $1.034
Earnings / (loss) per share, basic 582.55 1,782.34

Y

B. Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

The calenlation of profitJoss aftributable to equity share holders and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding, alter

adjustment for the eifects of all dilutive potential equity shares is as {ollows:

i) Net bruﬁt/(loss) attributable to equity share holders diluted

Particulars " Year Ended Year Ended
31-March-2025 3t-March-2024

Net profit for the year, attributable to the equity share holders 29,73 50.96
Interest expense of compulsorily convertible preference share
Net Profit for the year, aftribugable {o the equity share holders . 2973 90.96
ii) Weighted average number of equity shares (basic)
Weighted average number of equity shares of INR 100 each for the year (basic)

31,034 51,034
Weighted average numbsr of eqyuity shares of INR 100 each for the year {diluted)

31.034 51034
Barnings / (loss) per share, diluted 582.5 1,782.34

30 Auditors® remunecation (included under legal and professional charges, net of {nx)
Particulars Year Ended Yenr Ended
31-March-2025 31-March-2024
As Auditor
Statutory audit 0.48 122
Tax audit 0.03 u.03
In other capacity
Other matters 0,08 (.03
0.59 0.30

31 Segment Reporting
The Company is engaged in the business of purchass and sale of automobile spare parts, used vehicles and related services. The
entire operations aré organised and managed as one organisational unit with the same set of risks and returns, hence the same has
_been considered as rapresenting a single primary segment. The Company renders its services in India only and does not have eny
operations i sconomic snvironments with different risks and returns: hence it is considered operating in a single geagraphic
segment. Accordingly, no segment disclosure has been made in these financial statements.
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Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited, Ernakulam
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(All amounts in ludian Rupees million)

Employee benedits
Defined contribution plan

The company mukes contributions, delermiried specified percentage of employees salaries,in respeet of qualifying employees
towsards provident fund and othier funds which are defined contribution plans.The company has no obligation other than to make
specified contsibutions The contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss as they accrue.

Defined Benefit Plan

The compuny operates certnin post-crployment defined benefit plan which s provided for based on actuarial viduation carried
out by an independent actuary using the projécted unit eredit method The company accrues gratuity as per the provisions of the

Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972(Gratuity Act’)

Bused on an actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, following table sels out the stutus of the benefit plan and the amounis

recognised in the company's standalgne financial statements as at balanee sheet date.

Reconciliotion of the profecied Defined hengfit plan

Particulars  Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Defined Benefit Plan 12.80 . 10.69
Plan Assets 13.78 1118
Net Defined benefi liability/{Asset) (0.98) _A0.49)
Linbility for carapensated abscaces 244 214
Tatat employce henefit laibility Li6 1.63
Non-current defined benefit Habilily 0.77 1.06

0.69 0.59

Current defined benefit Hability

Other current assers(Balance with Lifs Insurance Carporation -Gratuity Fund (Net))

Reconciliation of net defined benelis (assets)Aiability

i)Reconciliation of present values of defined benefit obligation

The following table shows a seconcilistiod from the opening balanees to the closing balances for net defined benefit

(asset)/Linbility and its components

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2024
Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the yenr 10,70 1028
Current service cost L83 1.67
Past service cost - -
Interest cost 0.69 , 066
Benefits paid _10.62) (2.4
Liabilitics assumed /(setted) R 0.0%
Re-mensurements . ~ "
Actuarial Gainf(loss) recognised in other comprehensive income - -
-changes in financial assumptions 0.34 . (0.42)
~changes in Demographic assumplions - -
-changes in expericnce over fhe past period {0.38) 0.85
Defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year L 1280 10.69
i1} Recowciliation af present value ofplan assels X
Particulars Year ended Year eaded

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Plan assets at the beginning of the year 1118 10.06
Contributions paid into the plan 1.94 276
Benefits paid (0.62) (2.4}
Intercst income 0.77 0.69
Agsels nequired/(settied) ; 0.44 0.09
Re-mneusurenents
- changes in-demographic assumptions - -
- yeturn on plan assct 0.67 0.02
Batance at ihe end of the year 1378 11,18
Net defined beanelit liability (0.98) (.49}




Papufar Auto Dealers Private Limijed, Ernnkuinn
Notes to the financial statements {continued)

{All amonnts in Indien Rupees million)
Employee benefits (continued)
Expenses recopnised in the standatone statement of profit and loss
(i) Expenses recognised in the'standalone statement of profit-and loss

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Current service cast

Pasl service eost

Net-interest on net defined liability
Employer Contribution

Net gratuity cost

183
{0.08)
(1.94)
{0.19)

1.67
{0.03)
{2.76)
(1.12)

(i1} Remeasurcments reeognised in other comprehensive intome

Partieulars

Year ended
v 31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on defined benefit-obligation
Retum on plan asset excluding intecest income
Net.gratuity cost '

{0.30)

{0.30)

042

0.42

Plan Asset 4
Plan asset comprises of the following?

Partieulnrs

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

Funds managed by Life Insurance Corporation of Indin

13.78

11.18

The Conmprny nrkes anind contribution to the Life Insurance Corporation of India ( 'LIC") of an amount advised by LIC. The
Company was not informed. by LIC of the ihvestments made by them or the break up of the plan assels into various type of

investaients.

Defined Benefit Obligation
(i) Actoarial Assumptions

The following are the principal aciuarial assumptions at the reparting date (expressed as weiglited average)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Digeount rate 6.53% +7.20%:
Selary growth rate 6.00% 6.00%
Attrition rate 20% p.awithdrawal| 26% p.s withdrawa)

Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligaiton

rate st all ages

423 Yeurs

rate at all ages

4.18 years

‘The wejghted average assumpiions used {o determine net periodic henefit cost as set out below;

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set in accordance with the standard table - IALM 2012-14 (Uttimate). The
Company assesses these assumpions with its projected long-term plans of growth and prevalent industry standards. The discount
rate is based on prevailing market yields of govemment securities .

Gratnity is applicable only to employees drawing a salary in Indian rupees and there are o other foreign defined benefit gratuity
plans.

(i) Sensitivity analysis )

Reasonebly possible changes at the réporting date to one of the actuarial sssumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would
have affected the defined beneft obligation by the amounts shown below

- {Particulars As al 31 March 2025 As al 31 Mareh 2024
" Ineresse Deerease Inerease Decrease
Discountrete (0.5% movement) - (207 2.16 (2.05) 213
Future salary growth {0.5% movement) : 2.16 (2.09) 2.13 (2.08)




Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited, Eraakulant
Notes to the fintaneinl 5t ts {continued)
(Al amounts in Indidn Rupees million}

33 Financial Instruments- Fair values and risk management
A Accounting classifications and fair values
The following table shows the carrying smounts and faic values of

PRI

ial assets and i huding thelr levels in the fair vahue hieraschy,

As at 31 March 2025

Particulars Note Lasrying amount Fair valoe

Financiat assets 1t Mandatorily 4t Other financial  Totnd carrying! Levell Levdl2 Lovet3 Totat
ameortised cost FYTPL  liabilities st amortised valuc!
cost .

Avsete

Financlal assets not measured at fair value

Cash and cash equivatents 10 15 4 1330

Bank balanices ather than-cosh and cash exqulivalents 1 1637 - - 1637 - -

Trads reeeivables g 0408 - - 464 69 -

Other finzncial assets 12 t17 117

Financial assets measured at fair value

Rent Depuosit {included in Other Financial Assets) 12 - 2257 - 2337 - - 7347 1437
1, 5 23 40 43 - 2334 2346
Tatal 137.63 45.03 - 495,66 - 23,46 2457 48.03
Liabilities :

Financial liabilities measured at dmortisid cost

Trado peyables 18 . 16107 16167 - - -
Rorrowings § 14 - - 30457 30477 - - . .
Lexse labifities 34 - - 176 52 126 92 . . .

Other financial linbilities 15 - 734 134 .

Tot) - - 549.70 64970 ; - - - -
Asat3f March 2024

Particulars Note Carrying amunnt N Fair valoe

Financial nssetsat  Mandatorily at Other Anapcial  Total carrying] Levell Level2  Levet3 Total
rmortised cost FVTPL liahilitieg at amortised vafue;
cost

Asscts

Fiuancial assets nof mensured at fiie vilue

Cashiind cash equivalents 1o 1508 - - 15.08 -

Battk balances other than cash and sash equivitents 1 15.50 - 14.3¢ - . .
Trade recsivables ° 33734 - . 33734 .-

Otker finandial assets ] 082 cs2

Finanelal asscts measured at fuir value .

Rest Deposit (fncladed in Other Finsncial Assets) 12 26498 - 2648 . - a5 1638
1 & - 18 63 . 18.65 18.65 - 16.68
Tofal 36774 4313 412,87 - “IR6S . 2648 4543
Linhilitics .

Financtal liabilities mensured at :mofﬁs_:d cost

Trade payables 18 - - 156.70 156.70 .

Borrowings # 14 - 2644 244,34 - . - N
Lease labifities 3% . . 148.69 148.69 . . R
Oilier financial labitics 13 - . 581 581 . R R
Total - 85564 585,64 -

# Represents borrowings (short teem and Ioag termy end curvent maturities of long term bonswings included in other current financial linbilitics
The Company has nor disclosad the fir values for financisl instruments such as cosh and cash wuivalents, trade receivabiles, trade payables etc.,

approximation of fir value.

Measurement of fair valucs

The fair vaiue of the financial instrurnents is determined using discounted cash flow analyss. The discount rates used is based en macagement estimates

Level 1 fair values

brezuse thew carnang amouats arc s reasonable

Investment in‘equity shares that has a quoted price and which are actively trzded on the stock exthanges. Tt s been valued using the clesing price s ut the reperting period on the stock: exchanges,

Level 2 faie vulues

Envestmznt in mutual finds - is anquoted price and ara observeble for the asser or liskility, elther direetly (e, as prices) o indirectly {i.e, derved from prices).

Level 3 falr values

If onie o mare of the significant inputs i npt based on chservable data, the instrument is included o Jevel 3

The quantitative sensitivity analysis of Jevel 3 felr value of financial instnument 25 at 31 March 2025, 31 March 2024 has not been disclosed as ¢ is nol matesial 1o the Comgany.
.
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Nutes to the financial stalements (continued)
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees million)

33 Financial Instruments- Fair values and risk management (continued)

B Financind risk management
The company’s nctivities-expose it o & variety of finapcial risks: credit risk, liquidity nsk and market risk.

i) Risk manngement framework

‘The company's board of-directors (the Board') has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversightof the risk management framework. They
oversee how nmnngement dnitors compliance with the risk mansgement policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk mianags ement
fraiework in relation to the risks faced by the compnny. The Board is assisted in its oversight sole by infernal audit. Internal audit undenakes both
regular and ad hoc reviews ofrisk manfgement controls and procedures, the resulis of which are reported o the Board.

ify  Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will noz meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to financial loss. The
credit risk arises principally from ifs operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its 1uvcs1ng activities, including deposits with banks
and financial institutions and other financial instruments.

Credit risk s controlled by analysing credit limits and creditwortfiiness of customers o @ continuous basis, to whom credit hus been gramed aner
obtaining ne&cssary approvals for credit. The collection from the trade receivables are monitored on 2 contimious basis by the receivables weam.

The maximum exposute to credit risk for rrade receivables was s follows:

As it Asant
31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024
Particulars
yde/receivables 411.94 ' 338 14
411.94 338.14
N / Impairment analysis
The ageing of trade receivables is as follows:
As at Asul
Particulars 31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024
L.ess than 1 ycar 407.68 37 07
1-2years N 33 033
2-3 yeurs ' .64 154
More than 3 years )
411,94 © 338.14
The movement in allowance for credit loss in respect of trade and other receivables during the year was as follows:
Allowanee {or eredit loss Asat } Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balance at the beginning 0.3¢ 2083
Pravision creaed during the year 0.00 .90
Impaitment loss recognised/ (reversed) S 645 e
Balanee gt the end 7.23 0.0

No'single customer accounted for more than 10% of the revenue. There is ne significant concentration of eredit risk.

Credit risk on cash and cash-equivalent and other bank balemces is limited as the company generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with
high credit ratings ussigned Ly domestic credit rating sgencies.

iiiy Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that:the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settied by
delivering cash or another finanicial asset. The company's approach to managing liquidity is to cnsure, as far as pussible, that 1t will alwuys have
sufficient tiquidity to meet its Habilities when due, under both normal and stressed condifions, withowt incurring unacceptable losses or nishing duinage
10 the company’s reputation. The Company believes that the working capital is sufficient 1o meer its currént requirements. Accordingly. no liquidty risk
is pereeived,
'

The company believes that the working capital is sufficient to mest its current r2quirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk 15 perceived. The wble
below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as-of' 31 March, 2024:
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Notes to the financial statements (continued} '
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Financial fustruments- Fale valies and risk munrgement {continued}

The 1able balow provides details regarding the undiscountad contractual maturikics of significent financial hebilitres as of 31 March 2623

. Payable More than | lotal
Particulars within 1 yeur
yeur
Trade payables 160.41 0.6 toi 4?7
Borrowings # ‘255.63 4014 30477
Lease liabilities 34436 142,06 17652
Other financial liabilities 7.34 - 7.34

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial Hubilities as of 31 March 2024

Paynble More than i Tot!
Particulars within 1 yeur
verr
Trade payables 154.88 1.82 15670
Borrowings # 23574 %70 243 44
Lease hubilities 2392 ’ 12477 148 69
Other fipencial liabilities 3.81 58}

# Represents borrowings (short term and Jong term) and current matunties of long termt borrowings included in other curent financial habilities.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair vajue of fature cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuzte because of changes in markel prices. such as
forcign exchange rates, interest rates-and equity prices. .

Forcign currency risk

The company is cxposed 1o citrrency Tisk 1o the exiznt that there 15 3 mismatch between the currencies i which transactions are denominated end the
functions} currency of the company. The functional currency of the compaay is INR and the company does not have any maoterial foreten currency
transactions for the year:

Caslt flow and fair value interest mate risk

The company's main intgrast rate risk arises from long-term and short-term borrowings with varisble rates, whicl expose the company e cash flow
interest rute risk. The interest rate on the company™s financial instruments is based on market rates The company monitors the movement m mterest
rates on an ongoing basis, '

(1) Interest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the company’s borrowing o interest rate changes 3: the cnd of the year ane us follows
B k

Financial Habilities (bank borrowings) Asat Asut
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Variable rate Jong term borrowings including current maturitics 60.39 20.70
Sensitivity
Impacet on other components of
Particulars Imypact on profit or {luss) equity
, R
Axat
31 March Asat As al AS 1L
2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2024
1% ingreass in variable rate (0.60) (20 (6.45) 10.16)
1% decrease in variable mte 0.60 921 [ 0.16

Tiic interest rate sensitivity is bused on the closing balance of variable rte borrawings from banks and finaneial institutions.
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Notes io the Finnancial Staferients (continucd)
(All amounts in Indinn Rupees million) .
34 Leases :

The Company hes adopied Ind AS 116 'Leases with the dite of inthial apphication being April 1, 2018 for 2he timnedpurpose of
compilation of Restated Finanoin} Statements. Ind AS 116 replaces Ind AS 17 - Leases and related interpretation and guidanee The
Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified reswospeative approach, under which the cumulative effect of winal

application is recognised-itr the retained eamings a1 April 1, 2018,

Following are the changesin the carrying value of right of use assets for the period ended

Asat Asat
Puriiculnrs 31-March-2023 31-March-2024
Opemng Balance for the period 132118 114 30
Additious 60.59 5151
Less: Depreciation 3541 B
Less : ROU Asset on terminated agreements 3.08 0.74
Closing Balance ] 154.28 132.18

The aggregate depreciution expense on ROU asset is included under depresiation and amonisation expense i the Statement of Protit

and Loss
The following is the breakup of current and non-current leass liabilities

Asat Asal
Particulavs . 31-Murch-2025 31-March-2024
Current lease Tiabilitics 34.46 2392
Non-current lease liabilities 142,06 124 77,
Total 176.52 + 148.69
The following is the movement in lease linbilities during the period ended

Asat Asat
Particulars 31-March-2023 31-March-2024
Opening Bilance for the petiod 148,68 12718
Additions 60,59 5132
Add: Finance Cost acerued during the period as per IND AS 116 15,93 1347
Less: Lease fiability forthe period as per sent agreement 44.86 4239
Luss:-Lease Concession - -
Less : Lease Laability onterminated agreements 3.34 109
Closing Balance 176.52 148,69

L}

Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows

As at Asat !
Particulars 31-March-2025 31-March-2024
Less than one year ~ 4897 3640
One to five years v 134.39 10843
More than five years 3043 6147
Total undiscounted lease linbilities 233,99 206.36

Capital Manapement

The Company's policy is to mainixin a stable capial base s s 1 mamtun Mvestor, creditor and market confidence and to sustir
fulure development of the business, Management manitors capital on the basis of retur on capital empleyed as well us the debt v
tozal equity atio. For the purpose of debt to total equity ratio, debt cansidered is long-term and short-ters borrowings Total equits

comprise of issued share capitnl and other equity.

Asat Asat

Pariiculics 31-Mureh-2025 31-March-2024

Total cquity attsibuteble to the equity sharcholders of the Company 45340 42898
&s 2 pereentage of fotal capital &0% 647
Long-tetm borrowings 4614 § 7
Shioritenm borrowings ’ 23563 23874
Total borrowings 30477 234 44,
As a percenfage of tatal capital 40% 36%
Total capital (equity 2nd borrowings) 758.17 67342

\v';{-._,w . “‘:\{4 ’;
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Notes (o the financial statemeats (continued)
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36 Related parties

I, Names of related parties and description of relationship:
(a) Entity having significant influence over the company
Popular Vehicles and Servicss Limited
(c) AS:OCI&!C‘ & Fellow Subsidiaries
Papular Mega Motors fudia Private Limited
Vision Motoss Private Limited
Popular Auto Works Private Limited
Keracon Equipments Private Limired
Prabat Motors PviLid

Kuttukaran Green Private Limited (Formerly known 2s Kuttukaran Pre Owned cars Pvi Ltd)

Kuttukaran Cars Private Limited
Regiis Insurance Brokers Pvt Lid

« Key management personnel and their relatives (KMP)
Mr. Naveen Philip, Director
Mr. John K Paul, Director
Mr. Francis K Paul, Director
Mr. Thomas A Karedan, Director
Mr. Jyothish M, Director
Mrs. Shalet John, Spouse of Director
Mrs. Susan Francis, Spouse of Director

L]

1. Related party transactions:

(2) The Company has cutered into the following transnctions with related pustic:

Partlculars

Year ended
31 March 2028

Year ended
31 Miarch 2024

Revenue from aperations

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited 747 100.26
Populur Mega Motors (Indin) Privaie Limited 388 .10
Vision Motors Private Limited 024 T 2252
Popular Autoworks Private Limited ~ 234
Runt Income

Repiis Insurance Brakers Pvt Lid 0.42 ] 0.15
Rent expense

Populer Vehicles and Services Lirmited NEA 253
Repairs nund maintenance

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited §.002 2.
Poputar Mege Motors {India) Private Limited 0.65 - D3
Vision Molors Private Limited ! 0,05 0.34
Expenses met by the Company

Papulor Vehicles and Services Limited 479 343
Papulas Mega Motors (India) Private Limited 9.59 0.71
Vision Motors Private Limited 114 0.42
Popular Autoworks Private Limited 0.40 0.28
Kutiukaran Green Private Limited (Formerly known as Kuntukaran .
Pre Owned cars Pvt Lid) . o.06
Kuttukaran Cars Private Limited G447

Expenses ntet on behall of the Compuny

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited - 0.83
Regiis Insurance Brokers Pyt Lid - P (X )
Kuttukacan Green Private Limited (Formerdy known as Runm.aran 017 0.2
Pre Owned ears Pvt Lid) o o
Kustukaran Cars Private Limited Q.15 -
Regiis Insurance Brokers Pvi Lid G 83

Purchase of goods

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited 356 v 613
Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limited 123 143
Vision Motors Private Limited G.96 ~ 334
Purchase of fixed nssels

Popular Vehicles and Services Liniited G.17 . L84
Popular Mcgs Motors (Indin) Private Limited 1.39 -
Viston Motoss Privatz Limited ) . 1.56
Kuttukaran Green Private Limited (Formerly known as Kattukaran

Pre Owned cars Pyt Ltd) - 1.1
Kunuwkaran Cars Private Limited 1S5

Sale of fixed assets

Kuttukaria Cars Pvt Lid . 0.84
Kuttukuran Green Private Limited (Formerly known as Kuttukeran

Pre Dwned cars PyiTad) .18l




PopularAnta Dealers Private Limited, Ecnalulam
Notes {o-the financial statements (contitiued)
{all amounts in Indhian Rupees mutlion)

1. Relnted party teansactions: {continued)

Particulars

Yeur ended
31 Muarch 2025

Yeiar eaded
31 Murch 2024

Tatercorpornie loan Received

Papular Vehicles and Sérvices Limited:

60.00 |

Interest o Infercorporate loun. repuid

Popular Vehiclss and Services Lintited

.82

Carporate Guarantee Commilssion Paid

Popular Vehicles and Services Limtited

138

o LT

Corparate Guirantee Commission Received

Kuttukaran Green Private Limited

.03 |

111, Related party Balances:

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 Muech 2005 | 37 Mareh 2024
Trade receivables )

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited - 0.55
{Regiis.Insurance Brokers Pyt 1.4d 0.09

Trade payable

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited 0.97 285

Papulnr Mega Motors (Indin) Private Limited %.13 - 0.0%

Vigion Motors Private Limited 312 U 06

Papular Antoworks Private Limited ' .04 9.36

Kuttnukusan Green Privats Limiled (Formesly known ns Kutiaran . L8

Pre-Qwned cars Pyt Lid} ‘

Kerncon Equipments Prvate Limited - B

Corporate Guarssntee Connnission payable

Popular Vehicles and Services Limired 0.50 | 642 |

Lntérest payable

Papular Velicles and Services Limited 039 | -

Intercorporate loan

Popustar: Vehickes and Services Limited. 60.00 | |

Loan from Dircetor ]

Mt. Naveen Philip, Director - 14.70

M. Jolin K Paul; Direetor - 1.20

Rent Deposit Récelvable

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited 0.20 | 0.20 |
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Notes o the financial sintements {continued)
(All amounts in Indian Rupces million)

37

2 No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign enmities
(“Intenmediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or othenwisc, that the Intermediary shall.
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, seeurity or the like on behalf of the Ulimate
Beneficiarics.

b No funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entitics (“Funding
Parlies™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall. directly or
indireetly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whaisoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (*Ullimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guaraniee, sccusity or the like on behalf of the Ulimate
Beneficiaries.
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"""" 38 Ratios as per the Schedule 111 requirements

1 Current Ratio = Current Assets divided by Current Liabilitics

Parficulars March 31,2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Current Assets 832.99 742.82
|Current Liabilities 482.91 444.96
Ratio , 172 1.67
% Change from previous year 3.0%
2 Debt Equity ratio = Total debt divided by Total equity where total debt refers to sum of current &
non current borrowings
Particalars Mareh 31, 2825 March 31, 2024
Short Term Borrowings * [a] 255.63 235.74
Non Current Borrowings [b] 49.14 8.70
Total debt 304.77 244.44 ,
Total equity 453.40 428.98
Ratio 0.67 0.57
% Change {rom previous year 17.54%

* Shert Term Borrowings includes Current Mawrities of Now Current Borrawings

3 DebtService Covernge Rutio [EBITDA/(Interest Cost + Long term +short term horrwoings))

Particulars Mareh 31, 2025 March 31,2024
EBITDA ' 134.33 203.91
Tnterest Cost 45.09 39.15
Long Term Borrowings 49.14 8.70
Short Term Borrowings* 255.63 235.74
Debt Serviee Coverage Ratie 0.35 0.73
% Changg from previous year end -48%

*Short Term Borrowings includes Current Maturities of Non Current Borrowings

Reason for change niore than 25%:

This rdiio has decréased from 0.73 in March 2024 to 0.38 in March 2023 mainly due to increase in long
term borrowings and decrease in other Tncome

4 Return on Equity Ratio / Return on Investment Ratio = Net profit alter tax divided by Equity :
Particulars  _ Mareh 31, 2025 Murch 31, 2024
Net Profit after tax 29.51 91.27
Total equity - 453.40 428.98
Ratio 0.07 0.21
% Change from previons year -67%

Renson for change more than 25%:
The return on equity has decreased to 0.07 in March 2023 as compared to March 2024 maialy due 1o
decrease in the business volume and increase in expense

5 Net profit ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Sales

Particulars R March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Net Profit affer fax 29.51 91.27
Sales 2,718.91 2.827.46
Ratio 0.01 0.03
% Chunge from previous year -67%

Reason for change more than 23%:
The Net Profit ratio has decreased by 0.01 in March 2025 as compared to March 2024 mainly due to
decrease in profit after tax which was due to deerease in business volume and inerease in expenses




Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited, Ernakulam
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(Al aniounts in Indian Rupecs million)

¢ Inventory Turnover Ratie = Cost of materials consumed divided by closing inventory
Patticulars Mareh 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Purchase of stock inctrade [a} 2.391.54 2,514.61
Changes in inventorigs. of stock-in-trade [b] -21.84 -64.04
Cust of Material Consunred [a]+[b] 2,369.70 2.430.57
Closing Inventory 384.63 360.61
Ratie 6.16 6.80
% Change from previous vear ' -9.4%

7 Neteapital Turnover Ratio = Total incume divided by Net Working eapital whereas net working
capital= current assets - current labilities ]
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total income 2,733.72 2,863.01
Current Asset [a) 832.99 742.82
Currant Liability [b] 482.91 144.96
Net Working Captial [4]-[b] 350.08 297.86
Ratio 7.81 9.61
% Change from previpus year -18.7%

8 ‘I'rade Reecivable Turnover Ratio [Total Income/Trade Receivable]

Particulars March 31,2025 Marceh 31,2024
Total Income 2,733.72 2,863.01
Trade Receivable 404.69 337.34
Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio 6.76 8.49
9% Change from previous.year end -20.4%

9  Reéturn on Capital employed=Earaings before interest tind taxes(EBIT) divided by Capital Employed
Particulars | March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
EBIT ) 83.42 159.14
Total Asset [a] 1,129.26 1,008.96
Current Liability [b] 482.91 444.96
Capital Employed [a]-[b] 646.33 564.00
Ratio 0.13 0.28
9% Change [rom previous year -53.6%

Reason for change more than 25%:
The return on capit_al_cmploycd has decreased from 0.28 in March 2024 to0 0.13 in March 2023, mainly
varied due to decrease in Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) which is due 10 decrease in profitability
margins and increase in Borrowings
10 Trade Payable Turnover Ratio [Purchase of stock in trade/Trade payable]
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Purchase of Stock in trade 2.391.54 2,514.61
Trade Payable 161.07 156.70
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio 14.85 16.03
%% Change from previous year end -7.5%
v e
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As per our report of even dite attached

Place : Kochi Partner
Date :
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Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited, Ernakulam
Notes lo the financial statements (continued)
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees million)

Additional rerrulatory information pursuant to the requirement in Division 11 of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act,
2013

1) The Company dees not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any Benami property.

if) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off. ‘
iif) The Company has not'revalued its property, plant and equipment right-of-use assets or intangible assets or both
during the current or previous year,

iv) The Company hasot traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

v) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961

vi) None of the entities. in The Company have been declared wilful defaulier by any bank or financial institution or
government or-any government atithority.
vii) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

viii) The Company has not-entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or
previous financial year..

Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to conform to current year presentation.

Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Popular Auto Dealers Private Limited
CIN : U50101KL2005PTC018670

'/ 1 '//
?s‘r’ { ’ 4 /’ /

John K Paul
Director
DIN: 00016513

For R.G.N. PRICE & CO.

Chartered Accountapts

%W

P.M. VEERAMANI —

M. No. 23933, Fr. No, 0027855

i\ﬂ;’\ 2025




POPULAR AUTO DEALERS PRIVATE LIMITED

COMPUTATION OF DEFERRED TAX FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

DEPRECIATION
DTA @ 25.168 %
WDV as per Companies Act 7.98.41,397 .
WDV as per [T Rules 8,04,83,648 642,251 | 1,61,642
.ease Liabilities and RoU Assel 2.22,31,154 3595137
Provision for doubtiul debis 72,50,113 18.,24,709
Provision for leave encashment 4,28,694 1,07,894
Provision for Gratuity - .
3,05,52,214 76,89,382
DTA @ 25.168% 76,839,381
Net DTA as on 31,03.2025 76,89,381
Opening DTA as on 01.04.2024 54,62,921
Provision for the year 22,26,460
Less: OCI Component of Defined Benefit
Plan (74.894)
23,01.354

Note: Leave Encashment provision was allowed as exper
and DTA is considered only for the provisions from 31.0

Supreme Court in Exide Industries Lid

wliture in the income tax assessment in earlier years
1.2020 onwards consequent to the decision of
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POPULAR AUTO DEALERS PRIVTE LIMITED
ANNEXURE ’

&) RATIO OF GROSS PROFIT / TURNOVER

Period ended 31.03.2025 Year ended 31.03.2024

Sales 2,46,98.98,629 . 257.17,27.381
Add: Closing Stock 32,14,08,977 29,37,62,980

\ 2,79.13.07.606 2,86,74,90,36
Less: Opening Stock 29,57,62,980 23,89,82,305
Less: Purchases 2,32,44,89,234 s 2.42.9113,240
Qross Profit 17,10,55.372 19,93,94,816
Ratio of GP / Turover 6.93% 7.73%
Used cars division
Sales 7.60,25,217 8,40,93,133
Add: Closing Stock 1,21.69,504 1,59.73,793 :

i 3,81,94.721 10,00,68,928 )

{.ess: Opening Stock 1,59,73,793 87,16,693
Less: Parchases 6,70,47,139 $,35,01,713
Gross Profit 51,73,7189 58,50,520
Ratio of GI? 7 Turnover 6.51% 8.96%
B) NET PROFIT RATIO
Net-Profit as per Profit and Loss 3,83,21,199 11,99,92,081
Sales Turnover 2,54,59,23,846 2,65,58,22,516
Ratio of NP/ Turnover 1.51% 4.52%

C) STOCK IN TRADE / TURNOVER

Closing Stack 33,35,73.481 31,17.36,773
Sales Tumover 2,54,59.23 844 ) 2,63,58,.22,516
Ratio of Stock / Turnover ' 13.10% 11.74%
- T
s
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ANNENURE-CL

I’OPUL'AI( AUTO DEALERS PRIVTE LIMITED, ERNAKULAM

DEPRECIATION STATEMENT FOR_INCOME TAX PURPOSES FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

'

PARTICULARS “(;'1’_';' 4‘250%“‘ ADDIFIONS b E“?‘lo” torar,  |rate|PEFR Ef"‘m 0 “;?};"Zsﬂg\
More than 180| Less than 180
duys 1ys L
'ANGIBLE ASSETS i
Building 1,40,24,503 43,031,732 1.83.28,235 1% 18,32 824 oS dl
Plant & Machinery 32,45.887 11,74,630 228,599 3649116 15% a80222 3908804
Office Equipments 17,51.330 19,853,894 21,583 37,56,807 15% 5,61,902 314 9u8
Computer & Accessories 36,06,310 3,88,321 3,20,138 43,14769 | 40% 16,61 880 20,32 88y
NMotor Cyele & Motor Car 47,682,263 13,95.765 576,171 | 75,81,857 13% 10,32.59% i 635,49 241
Motor Car 80,786 34,10,851 13,63,820 9,85,702 18.69,755 | "*30% 0,50,334 i 221340
Motor Cysle & Motor Car (EV)" 14,35,644 16,38,038 18.07.751 1285951 ] 40% 1,568,764 ,- RV RN
Furniture & Fittings 4,23,89,387 40,34,783 23.58,037 4.87.81207 1G% 316019 b 440,21, 888
Tonls & Equipments 99,355 63,947 1.63.502 15%, AL J ety
TOTAL(L) 7,34,15,665 . . 1,43,62,158 73,26,000 33.69,624 9,17.34,199 . 1,13.97,691 8,03,36,508
INTANGIBLE ASSETS -

Sofiware 1,95.234 50,000 245234 | 40% 95,094 147,140
TOTAL(2) ' 1,95,234 30,000 - - 245234 98,094 147,140
Totul(i-+2) 7,36,10,899 1,44,12,158 73,26.000 33.69,624 9,19.79,433 1.14.95,7 b-‘\ 8,04,83,648

{*) Note:- Répxcscms electrically operated

wvehiicles under the head renewable energy devices as per clause (111} {0} of New Appendix | of Income Tax Ruley

e T




